INTERNATIONAL PROSECUTION SECTION
GHQ, SCAP

1 February 19463

Memorandum to: Mr. J. B. Keenan

From ¢ Carlisle W. Higgins

Subject : Interrogation of HIROTA, Kokl

| In the interrogation of Koki HIROTA at Sugamo Prison
on 28 January 1946 the member of our staff conducting the
examination so far transgressed what I consider to be rules

of fair interrogation that I feel it my duty to call to your
attention some of the questions and answers, coples of which

are on a sheet attached hereto,

These questions were asked and answered after the ex-
amination had continued for aquite some time and anparently
had produced nothing which would Jjustify them,

lirota was Foreign Minister 1933-6, Premier 1936-7,
Foreign Minister in the first Konoye Cabinet and a member of
the Cabinet Advisory Council,

General Woodcock reports: "On the whole, however,
Hirota's policy was coneciliatory.”

Capt., Phelps conducted the examination; Lt. Col, Hornaday
is the head of his groupe. I have discussed the examination
with Lt. Col. Hornaday but not with Capt. Phelps who 1s
scheduled to continuve the examination on Monday of next week,




To JBK From CWH -l 1 Feb, 44 ;

Subject: Interrogation of HIROTA

The following questions were asked by Capt. Phelps and answered
by Koki HIROTA.

"Q., I know something of the Japanese feeling for their
ancestors. I feel that if I ask you to take an oath to tell

the whole truth, not half lies, not part truth and part untruths,
in the name of your ancestors %hat 1t would mean something to

you?

A, I have been taught throughout my life to believe that and
in fact Confuclous teaches that,

Qe If I were to require you to give me such an oath would you
do so in the name of your ancestors?

A, I am not only willing to swear to that but the truth I tell
you will be beyond anything I can swear for under that situation.

Qe I accept your oath,

Q. Mr, Hirota, I ask you to remember you are in a tight situa-
tion here, I want whatever information you know. I want informa-

tion of probably many friends of yours but if you are to see
your family again I had better get that information from you,

A, Of course I am willing to do it and I know the Japanese situa-
tion todey devends upon what I say or do here.

Qe That 1s true,

A., (continuing) For the sake of the future of Japan and revival
of Japan I belleve those errors we have made in the past must be
completely removed.,

Ce Completely atoned for do you mean?

As, 7le must do everything possible so that a recurrence of the
things that happened to Japan will be impossible.

Qs Mr, Hirota, I ask you to remember now as you go to lunch
it being lunch time, that black cloak which you wear would rit
very well with a black cloak over your head and a noose around
your neck., Think that over. Xeep 1n mind your ocath to me in
the name of your ancestors. I want to ask you some very good
questions this afternoon.
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EXTRACTS FROM KIDO'S DIARY

HIRCTA, -- (Former Premier)

YONAI cabinet resignetion; Prince KONOYE's candidacy.
New cabinet premier.

Ex-rremier conference — new cabinet.

Conference - war opinion.
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“BRIEF*

NAME3 HIKCTA, XOKI File: 212
Aget 68

Interrogated: Yes

*

COUNTS OF INDICTMEMNT:

.

OUTLINE: Yeteran Yoreign Service
Foreign Minister 1032-1936
Fremier 1836-1°37
Foreign Minister 1927-1928
Member Cabinet Advisory Council 1940

DOCU~ INTERRO-

YEAR INCIDERT FART ICULAES WITRESS MENT GATION
e i e it o A k¥R |
1905 Yoreign Service, Feuder of Cenyoshs Ser 14
1932 Pe S
&ptl
1933
Mar. 9
1936 Foreign Minister
1934
Jan 4 Announced "Three principles" to Diet, would Ser 15
have nade China a complete Jap Colony. (say's Pel=5
Kvantung Army placed Japanese in pover in Manchukuo) Ser 15
1936
1937
Jll. Frime Minister
1928 Ordered to form Cabinet in hope that eatisfactory Ser 16
Nar, 9 settlement of 2-26 incident would be effected Pe 9
Allowved Army to pick Minister of Vayr Ser 12 P2
Stated that his views vere not in disagreement Ser 16
vith w P.l‘
This Cabinet adopted "Five-Year plan for Japan Ser 25
| and Manecharia.®
¢ 1936
{ 17 May His Cabinet passed and aprroved "Active Servicd" Mar.8
_E Policy to make ¥Yar and Navy Ministers of only 1946
l General's and Admiral's on active duty status pp 6-7
: 1936 :
Nov. 25 SA Anti Comintern Pact signed because Army wanted Ser 16

closer relations vith Germany : p 16




INTERRO-
GATION

B Mar 46
vp 11-12

Ser 20
p. B

fer. 20
Pe 12

8 Mar
PPe 14-15

8 Mar
Pe 22

8 Mar
PPre. 16=17

Ser 17

8 Mar

HIROTA, KOHI Flle: 212 (eont'd)
o e e ———————
DOCU-
YEAR INCIDENT PARTICULARS WITHESS MENT
T Dt S o 3 S o Ooeh, Bt I T 0 S A3 o I L o 45 S
1937
Jan.
1938 ¥oreign Minister (lst Kenoye Cabinet)
May 26
1937 Ushiba 347
July 6 Advocated "Local Settlement” of China disputes
(address to Diet)
Did not advise Konoye that U, S. and Or. BEritain
had affered to go Yetween China and Japan shortly
after hostilities Yegan. Went to Germany instead,
1937
Sept.b 6 A In address to Diet said "since China, ignoring
our true motives, has mobilized her vast armies
azaninst us, wve can not de otharwise than counter
the mobilization by Force of Arms" and-
"in the cause of righteouaness, we shall desnl
a decisive dlow."
1937 7
Nov. 7 Japan refused to attend Smssell‘'s conference
becasuse Army opposed attendance
1938
Jan. 16 Agreed to vlan not to deal further with Chiang
Kai-shek and to demand exfjiermination of Shek's
Governmant
1938
Nay 26 Resigned as Foreign Minister, Retired from Gov't.
1940
ian, to Advieor to Yonai Cabinet
aly
1540 Pronosed Tri-Fartite Paect to meeting of
wpte > 8 ! Former Premiers
141 At 2 meeting of former Fremiers, agreed upon
Tojo as Prime Minister
1M1
In, 28 Attended meeting of former FPremiers to dlscuss
29 16 var with United States and Gr. Britain - meeting

called by Teojo.

PPe 18-21
13 Nov 45
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HIROTA, HOXI Fille: 212 (cont'a)

DOCU- INTERBO-
IEAR INCIDENT PART ICULARS WITNESS MENT GATION
M ——

B o T T P S e Ml D gl

Considered by Araki as one who has
g8reat influence with the imperor,

1943

Aug. 30 Participated in meeting of elder statesmen
%0 discusa "Grave Situation. 508




14 Mar 1946

T0 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEX:

SUBJECT ! Summary of interrogations of HIROTA, ¥Xoki

~

FILE ¥0. t 212

Pursuant to instructions of the Committee at the 5 March meeting,
the sumasry of salient pointe, both negative and positive, is set
forth delov for your consideration.

The most important positions held by Subdbjeect were Minister
for Yorelgn Aggairs, 14 September 1933 to 2 April 1936; Prime Ninister,

§ March 1938 to 2 February 1937, and agsin Hinister for Toreign
Affairs, 4 June 1637 to 26 May 1528,

1. SJubject mtates that to his kmovledge he was ghosen as
Frime Ninister decause he wes a0t an active member of a political
party end wvas not closely affiliated wvith any army fection, He hsd
great difficulty in forming o cabdinet that was sgreeadles to the
arzy and wvas obliged to acoept as ministers five men desigoated by the
aray snd t0 withdraw his ovn nominees of four mén ob jectionadle to the

arny. Admits coneulting with the army regarding sppointment te
every cabinet position, (¥P 1-3, Entry 12)

d. RSusries regarding eadinet mesbers, army leaders, and alleged
moembers of nntlonalistic societies not productive of any informstion,
“xtensive gquestioning roagarding « dozen or more alleged nationalistic
sogieties indicates that mubjsct wvas not sctive in this field, He
denies membership in any society except Genyosha wvhich he states to
be non-pelitionl in character. Denies eny close relationship with men
reputedly key figurees in nationalistic organizations. Sub jeot denies

éver racalving any suggestions or any threats from any nationalistic
voclety. (Entry 12; Sntry 14, ». 25

&, The "HIROTA Doctrine®, or "Three Principles® for adjusting
the China Affair, snnounced to the Diet in January 1934, resulted
from conferences bdetween the Toreien Minlstry snd the War Kinistry,

Admits Shat foreign policy is largely formmlated by the military,
(P. 13, Bntry 14)




Summary of Interrogations of HIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1948

4. Subject claime Tesponeibility for getting Emporor to use the
expression “"regrettadle osqurrence or incident" in hie re-soriot vhen
referring to the 2.38 incident, This was most violent language ever
used by the Bmperor asad amounted teo an extremely severe reprimand of
the army. (¥, 33, Eatry 14)

8. JDefiuver "Threq Points® substantially as follows: (1) Since 1t
¥as not a “proper request® to ask China to recognize Manchoukuo it
Was seught to dring Chine and Nanchoukuo closey together by means of
trade arrangements, (2) It was necessary to see that Chinese agitation
Bgalust Japan should conse and that communistie activities in China
thould be controlled., (3) There should be closer economic cooperatien
betwveen China and Japan, (Pp 1, 5, ¥atry 15)

6. 5ubject admitse Ivmtung ATy vlaced Japaneee in DOwer in
Ranchoukuo, (Entry 15, p. 2)

7. Subject expresses opinion that “almost anyone who has been
Getive in that ineldent (Manchurisn ineident) showld bde resnons ible"®,
but expresces himgels only with respect to Genaral NORJO sna Goaneral
MINANI az individuals. (Ratry 18, ». 3)

8. Subdject mdmits hearing of maufacture of narasctics at
Harbin and Mukden and although he Suspected army direation, he denies
80y &ctusl knovledge of nargotiss traffic. (Entry 185, Pe 6)

9. Admits that "eonclusion could be reached” that the Manchurian
incident and the three prineciples of dealing with China amounted teo
violations of the ¥ine Fowey Treaty. (Entry 15, p. 8)

10, Sudjeat msserts his complete ignorance of any "plen” for the
oecurrense of the Manchurian incident sinee he vas ftationed in
Holland and Russin for a period ofr Jears preceding the incidens,
Frofesser soant knovledge of eny military plans or eperations singe
be has alwsys deen ig the diplomatic servieo, (Bntrr 16, p. 2)

11. Re foreign palicy Budject states 'hnhnnta.lly. the foroign
policy of Japan wee formulated by the Foreign ¥inister. Howover, in
any matter pertaining to the national defense, then, esrtainly, other
People may have consideradle influenge in determining that foreign
policy. In thet €vent, the Chiefs of Stars of the Army and Savy and
the Var Kingeter mey heve a veies in (¢, 1 Turther bYelieve the policy
sonceraing the national defense was decided upon by those four
viduals”, Further, "But when Setivities of the army bdecome tense,




Susmary of Interrogations of HIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1946

great inflvence upen forelgn polioy. Bespeeially it is true when the
above named four organizations deaided upon a particular course of
astion., Thenm the Foreign Minister is rendored almoet poverless,”
Subject also states that thase four organizstions virtually
constitute the Supreme Wer Couneil aud that their decisions become
the policy of the armed forces. (¥ntry 18, pp 3, 4)

12. 1n sasuming responsidilisy for publication of "Three
Frineiples® wsubjact sintes, "] pelieve that in anytihing pertaining
to diplomacy the Minlster of Toreign Affairs must Assume respons ibility,
that being my prisciple”, bdut does not fpeliove absolutely” that
publication of the Three Points vas a violation of the Hine Fower Trealy
and the Tellogg-Briand Faet, (Entry 16, page 7)

13, High lights of sub ject's aot of formation of his cabinet:
(1) Privce EUEQCYR declined the post begsuse of 1ll health and pressed
Sud ject to aceoept the Premiership. (2) KONOYE furnished five nanes
to Subject ss mocaptable appointees, (3) Army opposed several of
Subjeat's cholces, vis., YOSHIDA for Foreign Minister, QBARA for
Justioe Ninister, SHIMOMNURA for Communications, (4) Army oppomed
having two representatives from esch of the politicnl parties, (B)
TERAUCH] recommanded for War Minister as & nan who could reform ihe
army. (Eantry 16, pp $-12)

14, Subject admits issulng = statement, at the reyvest of the
arsy at the time of forpation of hin cabinet, that his viave veore not
in disagreement vith the army, (Sntry 16, p. 12)

15, Subject asserts there was no particular incident turing his
Premsiership that could be considered as a direct ceunse of the Chira
ingidant snd professes no Xknovledge of say plans lesding to the
tneident, (Zntry 16, p. 14)

16. Subject states that aray desire for closer relationship
vith Germsny resulted in Anti-Domintern Paet, 25 dovember 1538, States
further that after he becssme Fremier, 1936-27, War Minisier TERAUCHI,
and Foreign Minister ARITA wanted wim to enter intc a military pact
with Germany but that he refused to consider a pact of a military
nature. ZExplains Provise ¥o. 2 of Anti-Comintern Pact ealling for
matual defense inforastion as meaning only defense againet Comintern

sropagands, (SBntry 18, pp 16-17)

17. Subject denies ¥nowledge of mny government plan to provide
the Haanchuriaa incident as an excuse for war and does not belisve that
thore vere any long range plans for azgression that contemplated
sventual var with United States or Britain. (Entry 17, p. 2)

3=




Sumsary of Interrogstions of HIROTA, Xoki 14 Mar 1948

18, Explanation of the Imperiel Order of 17 May 1236 requiring
¥ar and Navy ¥inisters 40 be ckosen from the nctive 1list of generals
or lieutenant generals, or equivelent vy grades: The chaunge was
projesed to Subject by Minister of War THRAWOHI nnd Nevy Minister
NAGAXO on the ground that the current provision permitting appoint-
ment of retired officers had never been ntilized and should de stricken
as obdsolete sand on the further ground that suvek changs wvas necessary
in order to avold a possidle rise teo pover at a later date by officers
iavolved in 2,28 ineident. Jubjeet states "I would 1ike to meke
elear that sfter the Prime Minister vas foreed by Imverial
Legislation to obtain as ¥ar Minieter from the ranke of Lieutenant
Generel or Oeneral on motive tearvica, that, should ke not find
suitadle timber for sueh a ministerisl position on the motive lisg,
he night thon search the insctive list of "uch officere and by
recalling cthew Lo active korviae, have them appointed in the
ministerisl position, And I Deliave that vas done., An aotual
example of such & case was the case of Admiral YOSAL ¥ho was in the
Tesarves. Howvever, whon he was wanted for davy Ninister, he was
pleeed on setive duty, and appointed Ninister of the Yavy. However,
no eivilion aould de appointed to sither of theae tvo nositions .
(Batry 17, pp 3, 4, and 9)

1¥, Jlegarding attack on Fearl Harbor, Subjest states, "I stil)
think that it is the responsidility of the Cabinet end if I vere the
Fromier, 1 know I would feel that vould be the responsibility of
my Cabinet", and, further, that %,.....1 velieve in matters of
imgortance in counneation with military affairs, the responsidility
lies on the shouldera of Yoth chiefs, that is, the Chief of the
General Staff and the Chief of Naval Operations.* with respeat to the
responsibility of the Emperor, 5udject staten, "To us (¢t {5 not clear
wvhether the circunstances rurrounding that sttack vers sueh ne the
Rmperor was swvare of it.' (Zntry 17, p. 18)

20, Descrii;tion of meeting of all former - remiere on the 28th
or Z9th of November 1941, anlled by Vremier TOJO, Oroup wan told by

Fremler T0J0 of the governwent nlan to vage wsr, lLater, the group had an

dudience with the Emperor vho aeled their opiniens on war., Subject
stater he expreseed his diespproval of war againet America and his
cenvietion that all matters covld de settled by negotintion bdut that
fremier TOJO maintained a viev in direet confliet. (Entry 17, P. 10)
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sumpary of Interrogations of BIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1046

21. With respect to the responsibdbility of Narcus X1DO, Subjoct
states, "1 would not say he wes responeidle but he was in a ponition
s0 close %0 the Emperor, advising him in all matters of importance, and
he was one of the responsible advisers to the Emperer, #o that he
should be considered responsidle for whatl happened beesuse of his
office." (Entry 17, F. 10)

22, Subjeot states he first net TOJO when he explained the
Japanese-German military alliance to a mesting of former premiers
on September 1940, (Batry 17, p. 12)

25, ¥With respeet to the dispatching of troops to Ohina in 1837
Subjeet states, "I have adhered %0 the poliey of loealised
negotiated settlement in the loecality vhere the trouble took plaece.
¥hen the army vanted teo send forces to China, I told them that oaly
on the ground of giving proteation %o the Jnpanagse residents in the
locality involved would it de permissible, pus othervise I would not
sanction suah troop movemsnt., 1 have always paintained that apeedy
local negotiated settlezsnut was the best solution without giving
1% an opportunity to spread to other gections,” Admitting that the
arsy could have gone direct to the Emperor and secured permission %o
send troops regardless of his attitude as FYoreign Minister, Subject
states that, "but, in feat, to send froops to foreign soil involves
finance, and it is almost necessary for them to come through the
sebinet.” (Eatry 17, p. 15)

24. At 2 meeting of former premiere, after ihe resigoation of
Prinee EONOYE, Subjeet did not oppese the nomination of TOJO but
relied upon the expressed opinion of Marcus EID0 that TOJO eould
handle the situation well. (Entry 17, p. 18)

25. ‘westioning of Subject on evenis surrourding the 7 July 1936 ineldent,
and on persons commonly thought to be {nvolved in the incident, did nol
elieit any information of value, GSubject profestes to have little knoviedge
of tho)nniury dstalle or of financial oparations at this time. (Entry 20,
vp 1=0

26, Subject profeeses little knmowledge of eoconomiec plant for
the development of Japen and Manchuris or of the Natlonal Mobilization
Lavw.* (Entry 20, pp 6-7) |

27, Subject admnits addreseing the Diet, as follows, on § Saptomber
18371 "1s is hardly negessary to say that the dasic polioy of the
Japaneee Goverument aime st stabilization of relations detween
Japan, Manchoukue, and Chins, for thelr common prosperity and well

b=
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Summary of Interrogation of BIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1946

being. Since China, ignoring eur true motives, has mobilized her vast
armies against us, ve caunot do othervise than counter the mobdilisation
by force of arme,"

fhis statement represented a policy agreed upoa by the aray and
Foreign Office representatives, Subject ndmits saying in the ssme
speech, "VWe firmly believe that it is in accordance with the right of
solf-defense, as well as vith the gause of righteousansss, that our
country is determined to deal a decisive dlow %o such a country
(referring to China) so that it may reflect upon the errer of its ways.
The solé regourse open to the Japanese Zmpire is %o adzinister the
foregeing dlov to the Chinese army so that it may lose completely ite
will to fight.*

YWhen ssked vhather these statements amount to » declaration of wvar

on Chine, Subjeect replied, "1 esrtainly do think so.® (Eutry 20, pp & end

g)

36, In explaining his yersomal view of the war in Chinn, Sudbject
states that he was opposed to such a var, declared or undeclared, dut,
becsuse of the way the army was handling the situation, there vas
nothing they could do about it., During the seseion of the Diet in 1938,
Subject told Fremier KONOYR, Navy Minister YOUAI, and Army Minister
SUGIYAMA thot ke ocould mot discharge hia duties as Foreign Ninlster
under existing conditions and preferred to resign rather than to
continue. XONOYH said he also vented to resign because he gould nod
carry on his duties but thought it would not be right to allov his
sabiuvet to collapse while the Diet wan in session sonsidering the
Chins sffair. As & result, Sudject decided to vithheld his resig-
nation until the end of the session. (Fudjesct did resign 28 Nay 1538, )
(Entry 20, P, 10)

29, Japan refused to attend Brussells Conference dovemder 1937
becsuse the srmy demanded thet foreign nations not be alloved to
Lnuri)'cn becsuse the problem was detvesn China and Japan, (Entry 20,
Ve 12

30, %ubject etetes that st ineeption of the Ohina incident he
attemrted to negotizte through Britieh Ambassador Cralg, but had to
ahendon his effort because of strenuvous obdjection by the army.

Lttg" prmy was agreeshle to Oermany as an intermediary. (Bntry 20,
Po




Summer; of Interrogations of KIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1946

31, Subject insists Shat statement on Chins policy by AMAY
Yoreian Offies spokeamarn, 17 April 1934, wae uwammthorired and vas
mors severc than the official forveign velicy. (Interrogation of
5 BMarch 1048)

%7, Sabjeot admite that one of three points was that China
snould not csll far anteide Relp. (Pp 8, &, Interrogation of
5 March 1948)

3%, Subdjeot syecifieally pdmitted that he accepted every
percon Troposed by the army for & cabines porition and acseded 0
arry obiections to his owa nominees for sppointment, (F. 11,
Taterrogetion of 5 Hareh 1948)

34, If a auitable officer for War Ninister cannot de fonnd
on the mctive list the Premier may request the Emperor to recall &
vetired of ficer to active auty in order to sake Lim oligible for
appointzent. (Fp 11-13, Interrogation of O Marek 1948)

36, Sudbjeat states he resigned as Premier after alfficuliy
wvith army and it seemed 1ikely that aray would submit the
resignetion of ¥ar Rinlster T . Purther, scvbject wished to
dring about tha fall of the sntire cabicetl in order to cancel
g1l measures in proeens in the Tlek, parsiculsrly, firencisl wearures
furnishing more money t0 the army. (Pp 14=16, Interrogation of
B Mareh 1944)

36, SHuhlect nrofosces uo imowledge at all of parcotics traffic
or of Foreizn Office conneatica vith ihe rarcotice organization,
(5p 17-12, Interrogation of 5 Marah 1948)

7. Xeaper of tha Privy Seal is perhaps the Emperor's most
{gportant adviser; is the only one wao can offer unsolicited advioce.
Such officer must bear respens ibility for decisions of Emperor on
the yresusvtion that Ympercr followed kis sdvice. (Fp 1-8,
Interrogation of B Mareh 1246)

24, Ohange requiring setive service statnec for Yar end Ravy
dinieters 17 May 1256 war an Inpericl order d¢scouseed and approved
by cabinet ard Frivy Council. 5o one foresav that it would pul army
tn cortrol to the sxtent it did, (Pp 6-7, 8 March 1546)

39. Subject denies knoviedge of any plan to expnnd the Chins

{neident. Admits arsy sotivity sould have beea etopped by curtailing
financinl support. (F. 11, Interrogation of 8 Mareh 154€)

- ?-




Sumpary of lnterrogations of EIROTA, Koki 14 Mar 1946

40, After army ob jected to dealing through Englend and sug-

gested that Gersany ve used as an intermediary, gub ject presented
Japanese domand® oOn China to German Ambassador in Tokyo, vho sub-
mitted the demands %o the Garman Ambassador in Ohina. The demands

vere framed by the army and were too severe and gubd ject did not

expect success in the negotiations, A% that time, Mr, Orailg, Britieh

Anbassador to Japan, suggested that England and the United States be

requented to mediate, Subject consulted the German Oovernment 0 see
if it wvould egree to join with ¥rgland eod the United States, bt
Germeny 4id not acoept the proposal, Hence, Subject' s plan never got
to the point of psking assistance fyom nited States and England,

(Pp 11-1%, Interrogatien of B March 1948)

4l. Subject admits participation in cabinet discuesions and
epproval of 16 Jemuary 1938 statepent refusing o deal further with
Chiang Kai-shek and demending extermination of his government,

(Fp 14-15, Interrogation of 8 Narch 1848)

42. At meeting of former sresiere to discuss the Tripartite
Pagt, Subject proposed the pact heesuse it put China in & more
favorable position and could not possibly lead %o solution of
Chins affair. (Pp 18-17, Interrogation of 8 March 1948)

43. At meeting of Tormer premiare, Hovember 28 or 29, #ub jeod
expressad to Keperor nis disapproval of the govermment plan for

war. RKmperor asked opinions from the gEroup but made no statement
himmeolf, aubzlut claime to be unfamiliar vith negotiationn up to

that point, (Pp 18-21, Interrogetion of & March 19456)

44. BSubject resigned as Foreign Minister 1in Hay 1938 because
of army attemrt W etrip Foreign Office of power by creation of
Manehurian Affairs Board and becaunse of his inability to stop
extonsion of the fighting. (p. 21, Interrogation of 8 Marech 1946)

45, Bubject retired from goversmant in 1938 exocept for service
as sdviser to YONAL Omnbinet Jamary-yuly 1940, (¢, 22, Iaterrogation
af B Hereh 1948)

48, Sudbject perved as ohnirman of the Cabinet Flanning Board
for one or two months in 1937 dut resigned before oreparation of
uational Mobilization Lav. (F. 22, {npgerrogation of 8 Harch 1948)




¥hich sccepted Aray dominetion,

Summary of Interrogations of HIROTA, Xoki 14 Nar 1848

~SoEoLYEIOY

claseifying Subject as & fomenter of ageressive sotion or as a prime
initiator of government moves in suppert of Army expansionist policies.
Nr, HIROTA's statement of his own g00d intentions it self-serving, of
ceurse, but thie officer {¢ not avare of other evidentiary neterinl that
could succesefully refute his claim thet he was not & co-conspirator
with the Army groups in the initis) planning of erxpansion by fores of
armm,

If Mr, RIPOTA wvas not & lesder in the war cause, he ves,
aon@theless, an agtive follover after sscomplishment of sach phase
Of the expansion., Xis opposition to the Army's aggressive poliaies
8ad actions veems to have been confined to polemies, for it seeme
reasonably certain that 1€ his oppesition had deen substantial he
vould not have held the poverful positions of Joreiga Minister and
Premier from 1532 so 1§38, By Subjeat's own admission Lhe Aruy
controlled the goversmectal action, and the public record during his terme
in office} as well as his adwinsions upon interrogetion, indicates
that he accepted Arsy dictates despite eny personal cosvietions to the
Uﬂ'n‘rw-

In viev of the desire of the Committes to selegl defendants repre-
sontative of the various aspeots of war criminelity, Nr, HIROTA mey weoll
be included im the first trisl as being highly representative of those
men who scespted snd retalined high public office nt the price of werving
8% pavns for the Japenese expensionist rogine, MNr. EIROYA e typioal
of that large group of ®*R, Adaittedly not militarists themseolven, who
submitted to Army presswre for control of the gevernment and by con-
doning each aggression and Rogopting the frulte therecf gave impotus
$0 Lhe noxt sggression. A classio example of furthoring Army onds in
Subject's case wvas hie spouscrahip, ss Freaier, of the Imperiel Order
0 17 May 1830 which reguired that only Cenerale, or Lt., Cenerale, and
officers of squivalens SEvy renk in active sorvice could de pppointed
&8 Hinisters of War and Nevy., It will be noted that Mr, HIROTA adnits
the wmpecific respons ibility of cabinet members for activities of their
Einietriee and the over-all responsibility of the Premier for the policies
and sots of his goveramant, Pinally, 4f Mr, GRIDEWARA {s to e
extolled for his courage in retiring from public 1ife in defiance of
Aray control, them 4t vould seem proper to file cherges aguinet
Nr, HIROTA or soue other perszon similarly representative of the group

/a/ ARTRUR A, SANOUSKY
Captain, JAND
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1 February 1946

Memorandum to: Mr, J. B. Keenan

From ¢ Carlisle W, Higgins

Subject : Interrogation of HIROTA, Kokl

In the interrogation of Koki HIROTA at Sugamo Prison
on 28 January 1946 the member of our staff conducting the
examination so far transgressed what 1 consider to be rules
of fair interrogation that I feel it my duty to call to your
attontion some of the questions and answers, coples of which
are on a sheet attached hereto.

These questions were asked and answered after the ex-
amination had continued for oulte some time and anparently
had produced nothing whieh would justify them,

Hipota was Foreign Minister 1933-6, Prem‘er 1936-7,
Foreign Minister in the first Konoye Cabinet and a member of

the Cabinet Advisory Council.

General Woodecock reports: "On the whole, however,
Hirota's policy was coneiliatory.”

Capt. Phelps conducted the examinationj Lt. Col. Hornsday
is the head of his groupe I have dlscussed the examination

with Lt. Col., Hornaday but not with Capt. Phelps who 1s
scheduled to continue the examination on Monday of next week.




1 Feb, 46
Subject: ;nggrroggtigg of HIROTA
The following questions were asked by Capt. Phelps anj answéred
by Koki HIROTA,

"Q: I know something of the Japanese reeling'for their
ancestors, I feel that if I as
th

not part truth and part untruths,
ur ancestors Ehat it woulg mean something to

A« I have been taught throughout my life to believe that
in faet Confuecions teaches that,

Yo If I were to require you to give me such an oath would you
do 80 in the name of your ancestors?

of the future of Jap

&n and revival
| 8rrors we have made in the past must bhe
d eompletely removeq.

that a recurrence of the
impossible,
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January 3lst 1948

Memo to Mr.Higgins:

Thie transcriot has not yet been submitted to

Capt. FPhelps or to Mr.Sano the interpreter for any possible

changes,

D.Braun
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Date and FTime

Place

PRESENT

to Mr. Sano!

Capt. PHELPS:

Mr. SANO:

Questions by:

Qe Mr. Hirota, please give me a biographical sketch of yourself?

e

3

INTERROGATION OF
EIROTA, Koki

28 January, 1946. 0930 -1145 hours
1315 -1545 hours

Sugamo Prison, Tokyo, Japan,

HIROTA, Kokt

Capt. Calhoun W. J, Phelps, Interrogator
Capt. Arthur A, Sandusky

Mr. J. X, Sano Interpreter
Dinah Braun Stenographer

Oath of Interpreter, administered by Capt. Phelps

Do you solemnly swear, by Almighty God, that you will
truly and accurately interpret and translate from
English into Japanese and from Japasnese into English
as may be required of you, in this proceeding?

I do,

Gapt. PEELPB

(Note: A preliminary talk conducted by means of
questions and answers was held for about an

hour, no notes being taken as per prior request

of interrogator).

A, If you ask me questions, I will be glad to answer,

%W Begin with the district in which you were born?

A, I was born in Fukuoka Prefecture, February l4th in about the 1llth

year of Meiji.

Qs Would that be about 18897

A, Yes,




3 HIROTA, Koki Jan 28, 1946,

Qe Were you educated there in public schools?

A. TYes, I graduated from grade school and middle school in that
prefecture. Then I came to Tokyo to enter the first highschool.
Upon graduating from there I entered the Imperial University at
Tokyo. I majored in economic and political science. A4 that time
these two subjects were offered in combination,

Q. About what year did you graduate?

A, To the best of my recollection it was the 38th year of the
Heiji ara,

Qs So that you were about 27 years of age!?

A, Yee I wae about 27 years of age when I graduated,

Q+ Did you then enter the diplomatic apprenticeship?

A.  Fo, I took the examinations but I failed in them. Then I
accepted a position with the Governor General's office in Korea,
While so employed there I refreshed the course for examination to
become a diplomat and then I passed the examination.

Q- Where were you first sent as an apprentice!?

A. My firet assignment was at Headquarters of Foreign Affairs, for
& period of less than one year, Then I was sent to Peking, China,

Q- So that you entered the diplomatic service by civil service
examinations?

A. Yes, the first year I failed, and in the second attempt I was
successful.

Q. Tou are not a graduate lawyer, is that right?

A. I would not consider myself a lawyer. I ntudied law,

%@ Did you attend the Imperial Diplomatic School?

A. I did not attenl any schools other than wvhat I have mentioned,
» Now, as far as this diplomatic school you mentioned, I don't know

of the existence of any such school. However, the father of Prince

Konoye at one time founded a course in Peer School which had for its
object the training of diplomats,
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Q. What courses were taught in that school?
A. The courses were the same as offered in other common schools.

Q. Languagest?

A, I think the same subjects as are tanght in ordinary schools
but this particular school was attended only by members of the Peer,

Qe Did you or did you not attend?
A, FNo, I did not attend - not the Peers' School.
Qe After your assignment in Peking, what was your next assignment?

A, I was stationed in Peking for about two years. Then I was
transferred to the Embassy in London.

Q. What was your position there?

A. I was still an assistant diolomat. I was not yYet a full-fledged
diplnn:at then-

Q. However you were beyond the aporentice class?

A, I had only been in diplomatic service for three years and was
still in the lower brackets.

Q« How long did you remain in London?

A. Apout four years.

Q+ What was your next assignment?

A. I was returned to Japan and received an appointment as Chief of the
Firet Division of the Foreign Office.

Q- What was the topic of the Pirst Division?

A, The Firet Division handled affairs of the trade situation throughout
the Far Eastern countries,

Q. How long were you at that assignment?

A, I think I stayed there for four years,
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HIROTA, Koki, Jan 28 1946,

Q. VWhat was your next assignment?

A. I was next assigned as Chancellor, First Secretary of the
Japanese Embassy at Washington,

Qe How long were you theret

A, I was there less than two years,

Q. About how much less?

A, About two years I should say.

Qe About a year and ten monthe actually?
A. Maybe.

Qe Where was your next assignment?

A. I returned to Japan and was arpointed Chief of the Information
Burean - I was Chief of the Section Divieion of the Intelligence
Department. Then I became assistant to the Intelligence Section Chief
of the entire Section,

Qe Covering s period of how many years!?

A. My recollection is not very clear but it was not for long. Then
I vas made Chief of the Buropean and American Bureau of the Foreign
Office.

Qe Let us return to when you were Chief of the Section Divisiocn of
the Intelligence Department. What topics were covered by your divisiont?

A. It is rather vague - what the real line of distinction was between
the first and second divisions. When it comes to that, there are three
divisions and the last one handled the treasury and I even don't know

I am now not so sure whether I was chief of the First Division or Second
Division but I am reasonably sure I was chief of the Second Section.

To the ¥est of my recollection I think the first section covered the
Ching Divieion and the second muet have covered the Buropean and
American areas.

Qe What type of intelligence were they interested in giving?

A. The chief function of that division, the Intelligence Division
Foreign Office, is to handle domestic public opinions, domestic opinions,
and as far as covering of the intelligence is concerned, it is done by
diplomatic agencies aboard,




EIROTA, Koki, Jan 28, 1946

Qe Through their travel bureaus aboard?

A, At the time I was there it was just newly organized and I don't
think the functions of my department or elsewhere were so completely
defined and we did not engage on any large scale,

Q. You mean the function of the office at that time and not now?
A. Yes, that is correct,

Qe Did you ever receive information as chief of the Section Division
or of your division relative to the shipping strength of foreign '
countries which your section covered?

A. I do not have any specific recollection on that subject but 1if there
was any information on thatthat would be handled by some other section in
foreign affairs office but what I do remember ie when I was at the Enmbassy
'in Weshington for a veriod of about two years I made a study naturally

of the world divlomatic conditions and I noticed the cancellation of the
Anglo-Japanese Alliance was becoming a major iseue in diplomatic circles.
In America vublic opinion then appeared to me - even the Irish, Chinese
and India people living there were for the cancellation of the treaty,
although that did not represent public opinion., They held the view dis-
favoring the existence of such an alliance between Japan and England. The
reason as I understand, advanced by these groups of people for the termina-
tion was that Japan was aiding England which was ageinst these groups of
Irish, Colonial India, and Chinese. That at least was the atmoephere
surrounding their thinking, I want to make clear by these groups of pecple
I mean those who resided in America, That is what I sensed among those who
vere residing in the United States,

Q. How long after the World War No.l - that 1is the British, French and
American War ageinst the Germans, do you assume this particular time to
bel

A, It was the time when Edward Gray, Ambassador of Great Britain was in
Washington,

Q. Where were you stationed during World War #117

A, I was in Tokyo. Toward the end of the Versaille Conference I wvas
sant to Washington,

Qe That would be about two or three years after World War No.l?

A. I think about the time the late President Wilson made a trip back
to the United States, I elsofelt that there was a feeling in America that

.
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HIROTA, Koki, Jan 28 1940

that the World Naval Armament would be better if they were limited.

Though that atmosphere was not a clear and distinct one, it was sufficient
for me to feel it and I came back to Japan gsensing the existence of

guch feeling in America. Upon my return to Japan, I advocated that

Japan too must fall in line along that thought that I had found in the
United States. |

Q. That is, the limiting of the naval arms of each country?

A, Yes, In addition to that, not ¥nowing much where the cancellation
of the Anglo-Japanese Alliance would take a turn.

Qe Returning again to your job as Chief of Section Division of
Intelligence, or assistent chief of the Intelligence Sectiom. Was it
not the job of that section to ascertain the distribution of economic
goods such as rubber, oil, cotton, hemp, iron, steel, tin and other
prodncts?

A, FNo, we did not becausase those matters were handled by the Foreign
Trade Bureau of the Foreign Ministry.

Returning agsin to that, That would be the dbureau or the section
within the Foreign Ministry that would most jealoualy cast 1ts eyes on
the Manchurian Section or other sections within the Far East or within
the Pacific Ares, would it not?

A, T did not come in contact with anything like that nor do I have
a clear recollection of that section hapdling the Manchurian Affairs,

Q. However, 1t was through this office, was it not, that such
information would be gleaned?

A, TNo, it did not come through this office, There were reports which
came to the Foreign Ministry and were segregated and a copy of the informa-
tion they secured which would be of interest to my particular division
would be forwarded to me.

Q. But such intelligence information sbout Manchuria or China or

Hawaii would be filtered to that section of the foreign office which
handled that particular intelligence information, would it not?

A, Those intelligence reports would be distributed according to the
nature of the section within the division, That is the reports would
not come to the division directly; instead they receive the redistribu-
tion of information coming to the Miristry direct.

Qe Mr, Hirota, you were a foreign minister for roughly ten years, As
foreign minister you would kmow what information came into that office.
My  question  1s direct. I ask you, Would not these reports be broken
down and then the section chief receive such information as pertains
to his particular branchl?

-6




HIROTA, Koki, Jan 28, 1946

A. That is right,

Qe So that the Office of Foreign Minister would obtain intelligence
information and somewhere within that office someone would receive these
intelligence reports, is that correct?

A, Yes,

Qe Mr, Hirota, having been born in Fukuoka you are probadbly a
descendent of the ancient SAMURAI family, are you not?

A, Ag far as I know, my ancestors never were of the SAMURAI family.
My grandfather was a fisherman and my father was the son of a fisherman
and we have never been of the SAMURAI Family.

Qe You are not a SAMURAI yourself?

A, No, I am not, In fact I do not like the Samurai., My father served
a8 an apnrentice craftsman to a stone mason and he established a home and
I was born in that home, However, because of my interest in studies and
school work my younger brother was to take care of family affairs and I

' was sent to school.

Qs What faith have you?

A, I do not know whether I could call it a religion or not but I am
a firm believer in the teachings of Oonfuciocus.

Q. Well, you have some expectation of the Hereafter?

A. On that point I must say that I have some Buddhiem faith,

! Qe S50 that you desire when you depart this world to have at least a
| good name for yourself on earth?

A, TYes, that is so,
Q- And you desire to have your ancestors think well of you?

A, Yes,

/ Qs I know something of the Japanese feeling for their ancestors.
1] I feel that If I ask you to take an oath to tell the whole truth, not
half lies, not part truth and part untruths, in the name of your ancestors
that it would mean something to you?

A. I have been taunght throughout my life to believe that and in fact
Confucious teaches that,
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HIROTA, Koki, Jan 28, 1946,

Q. If I were to require you to give me such an oath would you do
80 in the name of your ancestors?

A. I am not only willing to swear to that but the truth I tell you
will be beyond anything I can swear for under that situation.

[ I accept your oath.

Qe Mr.Hirota, I ask you to remember you are in a tight situation here.

I want whatever information you know., I want information of probably

many friends of yours but if you are to see your family sgain I had better
get that information from you.

A, Of course I am willing to do it and I know the Japanese situation
today depends upon what I say or do here.

( Qs That is true.

é A, (continuing) For the sake of the future of Japan and revival of
Japen I believe those errore we have made in the past must be completely
removed.

! Q Completely atoned for do you mean?

A, Ve must do everything possible so that a recurrence of the things
[ that happened to Japan will be impossible.

Q. Mr. Hirota, I ask you to remember now as you go 1o lunch, it being
lunch time, that dlack cloak which you wear would fit very well with

a black cloak over your head and a noose arcund your neck. Think that
over, Xeep in mind your oeath to me in the name of your ancestors. I
want to ask you some very good questions thies afternoon.

o
A. I will be very glad to answer any questions that I kmow anything
about,

Qe That is all I ask you to do.

A. In that respect to my way of thinking, this thing must be told you
in guite detall.

Qe I will interrupt as I feel you are getting off the track,

INTERROGATION ADJOURNED
TO 1315, same date, same place,
éameé appearances,
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HIRQOTA, Koki, Jepuary 28, 1946 (afternoon)

RROGATI ONT JO T FOR LUNCH.
Questiopns byi  Capt,PHELPS.
Q. JHE. K&rcta, do you ¥mow ARITA, Hachiro?
A, Yes,
Q. What is his common reputation for truth and honesty?
A. I think he is quite an honest man,
Qe Do you kmow KODAYASHI, Seigel

A. No, I do not,

Q. Do you know Vice Admiral SATO, Ichiro!l
Ky ~IDe
Qe Do you know Baron HIRANUMA, Kiichiro?
A. Yes, I know him very well because of my affiliation with the

government capacities and he also has been a privy council chairman and
privy council vice-chairman,

Qe

A,

Qe
A.

What is his reputation for truth and honesty?

I think he is supposed to be an honest man,

What is your opinion of him?

I have not had much connection with him so I cannot say exactly.

Do you ¥mow OTA, Kogzol?

If I saw him perhaps I might kmow him but it 1s not anyone that

I have associated with,

Qe
A,

A.

Do you remember the Minister of Education in the SHZUKI Cabinet?
I think I have that recollection.
Was it not OTA, Kozo?

Yes, I think he was.

4
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HIROTA, Koki, Jamary 28th
Qe Do you know YUKI, Toyatora?

A. I do not know him too well but he is the person of whom I epoke
before,

Qs He was Minister of Finance in

the TOJO Cabinet, was he not?

"{
A. I remember him to be a Minister of Finance under the HYASHI f
cabinet but whether he was finance minister under TOJO, I could not 1
tell you. Perhaps he was,
Q What is his common reputation for truth and honesty? g
A, The general reputation varies, He was a banker, %

Qs  For MITSUI?

ank of Japan which is controlled by the
ater became oresident of the Bank of Japan,

Qs Do you know KIKUCHI, Takeo?

A, If I see these people

I think I can identify them but I do not
know them, |

Qe Do you know Count OGASAWARA, Choged (Tyesi)?

A. Yes. He is a person of whom

I made casnal acquaintance thres or
four times at the public meetings

Qe What is his reputation for truth and honesty?

A. This is the gentleman who knows Admiral Todo very well and he has
always held very high praise for his work during his lifetime.
As to honesty I could not tell you,

Q  Did Count OGASAWARA sponsor Admiral Todo?

A. He was perhaps under Admiral Todo at one time or another and after

Admiral Todo passed away he had very high commendation for the work of
Admiral Todo,

Q Do you know Gen., HARA Siotani?
A. I dont know anyone by that name among generals.
/ Q« What position does the HARA Siotani that you know have?

A. There was one sdmiral by the name of HARA KAI. But I do not even
know this rear admiras Hara personally but I knew his older brother

~10-
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HIROQTA, Koki, Jannary 28th

by the name of Katsuro Hara who was one of my teachers in highschool.

Qe Do you know IKEDA, Seichin?

A. TYes, I met him frequently - not so frequently but from time to time.
U VWhat is his revutation for honesty and truth?

A, .He 1s known as a person who believes in right things. He was of
the House of Mitsui. He was the head man of the Mitsui house.

Qe Did you know SUZUKI, Ichuro?

A. F¥o, I don't know him,

Qe Would you know him by reputation as being a leader of of SEIYUKAI?
A. I don't know such a name at all.

Qe Do you recall the name of SEIYUKAI at all?

A, Yes, I do.

Qe What is the SEIYUKAI?

% That was one political party - by the name of SEIYUKAI and
another opposing party by the name of KENSEIKAI.

Qs Who were members of the SEIYUKAI?

A, SEIYUKAI being one of the largest political parties they had

80 many members and Mr.,Hara was the leading figure in that political
party-

Q. VWhich Mr.Haral

A. HARA KEI. SUZUKI, Kisaburo was the next vice president after
the death of Mr.Hara. But these people I do not know too well,

Qs Did you kmow Baron TANAKA,Giichi, General?

A, I know his name well of couree but I have never met him in person,
TANAKA first became the president of SEIYUKAI and when he formed a

cabinet he combined the duties of foreign minister. A} that time

he aporoached me to see if I would accept the position of foreign minister
in his cabinet, But before that Primier Shidehara asked me to serve in
Holland and for that reason I declined the offer from TANAKA. I¢ you
allow me to make an observation here that if you are going to investigate
the conditions of Japan, it might be beneficial to knmow what happened
during the TANAKA administration,

Q+ Thank you. Do you know Gen. ARAKI, Sadao?

A, I knew hirbecause I served with him in the same cabinet,

-11-
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HIROTA, Koki, Jamuary 28th

Qe What was his reputation for truth and honesty?

A, As an individual he is an honest man but the statements he
makes run into extremes so the people misunderetand him,

Qs Who writes his speeches - who dictates them?

Ae That I do not know.

Q Was he a member of the so-called inner group of the Army!?

A, I think he could be called that. At that time there was a faction
in the army circles known as EKodo-Ha and he took a leading part in

it. There were many factions in high military circles andi it is rather
difficult for me to say who belonged to which faction,

Qs What wae the reputation of Gen,Tanskal?

A. I don't kmow about truthfulnees but his reputation was as a
soldier who is fond of politics.

Qe Therefore a liar?

A, I don't know him too well so I dont want to go that far.

Q¢ What was the reputation for truth and honesty of SUSHEI Xisaburo?
A, I dont kmow him well but people surrounding him say that he is
the one who was even willing to give what he has to save his people

surrounding him or his followers.

Qe It must be your way of saying he would give one the shirt off
his back,

A, My understanding is that he is that kXind of a man,

A | What is the reputation for truth and honesty of HARA KEI?

A. HARA XEI as I knew him - I knew him when I was rather young but

he took leadershin in the SEIYUKAI Political Party and my understanding
is he 1s very highly intellectual and a clever man,

Q@ Do you know General NOZAKI?

A, No, I don't know hinm,

Q Do you know Major Ggneral KOISO, Kuniakil?

A, ¥No, I do not know him,




Q. The KOISO who later became prime minister succeeding the Tojo Cabinet?

A, I say that I do not ¥mow him, I made a statement to the effect
that I did not kmow him,

Qe Do you know his reputation for truth and honesty?

A, I have the suspicion that he was a man who liked volitics - that
he was in the army,.

R« Then he may have been a member of the inner group?

A. No doubt he must be an influential member of it. I do not know
what position he held in the imner group. We had so many generals in
those days.

Q. Do you know HATS, Shunroku, General?l

A, Yes, I met him once in a while because this general was attached
to the Imperial Household,

Qe What was his reputation.
A, I think he was a person known to be trusted by other people,
Q. Was he connected with the Japanese expedition into Chinal?

A. He first became a Minister of War during the YONAI cabinet,
I believe he was sent as commanding general of the Chinese campaign.

Qe Do you know Admiral KATO.
A, Are you referring to the admiral sti1l living, or the one who died?

R The one still living.

A, I don't kmow Admiral KATO but he must be a son in law of Admiral
KATO who represented Japan as head delegate at the Washington Naval
Armament Conference,

Q. What ie his first name?

A, My knowledge of him 1s 80 14mted that I do not kmow his first
namee

Q. What is his reputation for truth and honesty?

A. I don't know,
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Qe Do you know Admiral NOMURA?

A, Yes, I know him.

Qe What is his first name?

A, Kichisaburo,

Qe What is his reputation for honesty?

A. He is avery conservative general. That ie my understanding.

Q. He was very friendly pro American in Washington o few days prior
to Pearl Harbdor?

A, Yes, that is right.

Q. Do you kmnow Admiral TOYODA?

A. I do not know any one by that name. Perhaps it is TOYODA, Teijiro
who uoon retiring-from the navy perhaps was appointed as the Minister of
Commerce and Indnatry, then later he perhaps became a forelgn minister.
In fact I know that he became a foreign minister., Then later he became
a Minister of War Supplies. Another TPYODA I know is a professional
gsoldier and until lately he was the Chief of Staff of the Navy.

Q. DBoth are Admirals!

A. Yes. But the latter admiral I don't believe I have ever met,

Qe Do you kmow TOJ0, Hidikil

A. After he became the premier which bears his name, I knew him,
Howanr up to that time I never knew him,

Qe Was he a _sonaralt

A. Yes. He was a general and he was a Minister of War,

Q. What is his reputation for honesty and truthl?

A. Do you mean during the warl

R At any time?

A. Of course his reputation during the war was such a notorious

one. He wae so well known as such that I donft know as to his
honesty or veracity.

Qe What was the reputation for truth and honesty of TOYODA Teijirol

A. This TOYODA Teijiro is the one I have mentioned to you a few




EIROTA, Koki, January 20%h.

minutes ago. I forgot to mention about this last, Ggneral Tojo, he was known
to be a very nervous person., About TOYODO I did not have personal contact
with him, and would not know his character,

Q. Have you seen General Tojo here in person?

A, No.
Q. Was Tojo, to your knowledge, a member of the inner group?

A, I heard that a younger group of officers were supporting General
TOJO.

Q%+ That younger group of officers I believe were called the inner
group?

A, I am wondering if they did not have great influence in the army.

Q. Was General Tojo, to your knowledge, a member of the KORDI KAI (Black
Dragon Society)? .

'A. I do not know who the members ¢~ the Black Dpagon Society were and I
am sure I do not now whether Tojo was a member or not.

Qe Did you know TOYAMA?

A, Y8, I did.

Qe Is he still living?
A, He passed away.

Q. When did he die?

A, The year before last.

Q. What was his first name?

A. Mitsuru., He was born in Fukunoka Prefecture, H wever he stayed in
Tokyo most of his life. I stayed at my home until®I graduated middle
school. Then I came to Tokyo with Mr. Toyama.

Q. Did Toyama found the Black Dragon Society?

A, I cannot say for sure whether Mr,Toyama founded the Black ]:gagon
Society but a man by the name of UCHIDA, Ryokei is kmown to de the
fbunqlr.
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Q. Was Mr., Toyama a member of the Black Dragon Society or not?t

A, Mr. Toyama wae a man that as a rule did not join any such
organizations and I don't know whether he was a member of the Black
Dragon Society or not.

Qe Is it not true that M, .Toyama founded the Black Ocean Soclety?

A, My understanding is that several men organized the GENYO-SHA,
The leading founders of this GENYO-SHA were those descendents of the
ones who took active part in the SAIGO TAKAMORI Incident.

Qe What was this SAIGO TAMAMORI Incident?

A. That 4incident is commonly understood to be a factional fight

between CHOSSRU Military clicks and the SASSHU Faction and also

the friction between the military personnel and civilian personnsl within
the governments At that time there existed a movement striving for
liberalism and I believe this GENYO-SHA was one of these groups advocating
more liberal ideas against the reactionary government forces.

Qe Nr, Toyama was a member of GENYO-SHA was he not?

A, I think e man like Mr.Toyama being a senior was perhaps one of

the advisors rather than a member. In Japan when we say that one is an
advisor that position is that of an honorary one,

Q. You preached the funeral oration at Mr.Toyama's funeral did you notl?
A, No, I did not.

Qe Did you attend the burial?

A, Tes, I did.

Q. MAINICEI, the newspaper says that you preached the burial sermon
or gave the ritual address}

A, I d4d not and the one who did was TOKUTOMI, I wonder if such an
article as you mention was in the paper could perhaps have been an error.

Q. Perhapse Did you know Prince KONOYE?
A, Yes, I did,

Q. What was his reputation for truth and honesty?
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A. I think he 1s an honest man but he is a person with weak
'111 powel‘-

Qe Do you know that we have the memoirs and diary of Prince KONOYE?
A. I read that in the newspapers.,

Qe I mean the actual diary which he kept?

A. That I do not know,

Qe+ Did you keep a diary or any memoirs of your services with the
government?

A, No, none whatsoever,

Qe Did you make any notes?

A. N,t even that. I did not keep any private records believing that
whatever work I did would be recorded in the records of the foreign
offioe-

Q. Do you know where the records of the foreign office may now be?

A. These records during the war, I do not know they kept them, I had
a desire to see some of these records lately and I made inguiry for them
but I was not able to secure the records,

Qe Do you know SUGIURA, Juko?

A. I know the name tut I do not know him personnaly.

Qe What is his reputation for truth and honesty?
A,

I knew him to be a very conservative scholar,

Q¢+ Do you know KITA, Ikii?

A, I heard of his name but I never met him,

Qe Was that his real name?

A. I believe the last name KITA must be a true name but the other

part, Ikki, I doudt if that is his correct name,
Qe Do you know his correct first name?

s No.

""'1 7-
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Do you know Dr, OKAWA, Shumei?

I now his name only.

What ie his reputation for truth and honesty?

B LA :‘; 'f'#n-

I understood him to be quite a scholar,

e rere

Do you know GONDOT+<

A, Seikei, perhaps tha.t". is his name, I knew him to be the author
of two or three books, A, far as knowing him is concerned, I never
met him and have no acquantance with him,

Q. VWhat is his reputation for truth and honesty?

A, My knowledge is to the extent of kmowing that he published two
or three books,.

Qe What type of books?

A, I think a treatise on agricultural problems,
Q. Do you know TAKABATAKE?

A. What is his first name?

Qs I den'y know it,

A, I don't know him,

Q. Did you know MINROTO, Yamoto?
A. JNo.

Q. Did you know SEIGIDAN?

A. YNo, I do not know him,

Qe Ig there a political group by the name of SEIGIDAN?
A. I do not remember,

Q. Do you know HAKASHIMA, Muneichi?

A. I do not know him,
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Q. Do you kmow HATTA, Yoshiaki?

A. I do not kmow, I wonder how it is written. I mentioned one HATA who
was a general a little while ago.

Q. That was HATA. This is HATTA,

A, Yes I remember him, He was Minister of T;anaportation - Minister
of Railways as we call it. v

Q. What was his reputation?

A, He is a person I am not well acquainted with.

Qe Do you know his reputation generally?

A, I dont think he enjoyed such a bad rdputation as to his honesty.
Q. Do you know SADA, Kajio?

A. I don'y know him, |

Q. Do you kmow OKADA, Takuo?

A, I don't know him,

Q. Do you know YAMASHITA, Tomohito?

A, Yes I know his name,

Q. Was that G neral YAMASHITA?

) 7 Isa, that is his name.

Q. VWhat was his reputation for truth and honesty?

A. He is Xnown to be a man who did not agree with ngeral ToJjo
and he was well liked by a large mumber of people in Japan. But at

the time Singapore fell, people in Japan did not accept him with the
fame honor as they greeted General FOGI 4irn the Russian war,

Q. VWhy was that?

A. According to what I heard in the newspapers his attitude toward
the enemy forces was too severe.

Q. Did you kmow DOKE, Seiichiro?

A. I don't know him,

-19-
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A. T don't know who ever translated that to be the Black Dragon

Society but before the Russian war there was an organization known as
the Amur River Society which existed,

Qs And was that called the Black D_agon Society?

A. Now "Amr" River is Black D.agon River in the navy. Translated
into English Black Dragon 1s a literal translation of the characters

Qe Was this in connection with the Ammr River Society and the Kokur

A. I think 1t 4e the same thing but the translation or the origin of
the name is » mil-trannlation..

Q This organization was founded, was 1t not about 1901 in the
English calendar?

R What was Mr. Ochida's reputation for truth and honesty?

A. His reputation ¥as varied but what I heard is that Mr,Ochida

ralsed a fund for thig organization dbut I do mot know in detgil
what his activities were,

Q- Was he not considered a gangster?

A. I think that may be too severe to call him that and I question
it,

Q Is not the Black Dragon Society known for assgesinating thoge
government people or militarists who did not accede to their wigheg?

A. I have not heard anything of that nature at all, I feel that
the name XKOKOU KAl Black D.agon Society is known excessively

Q. Have you ever heard of JAYYOSHO using such methods?

A. I heard such & thing might have happened before in the early

=20
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days dbut at the present I do mnot think there is that kind of activity.
Q. Were you ever threatened by any organization when you were in officel?
A. Do you mean Kordl Kai or Genyo Shal

Qe I mean any society.

A, There was a time before this war when a group of policemen came to
guard our house on receipt of information that a group of people whose name s
1 do not know, were attempting to attack those who were important vassals
gurrounding the Emperor because they were surpressing action against the
United States.

Q. Did you ever hear the name by which that group of people went?

A, Pgarhaps it is known to the police but I have not been able to
ascertain neither the name of the organizetion nor the people who
com-osed it. After the surrender of Japan, as I mentioned before,

at my Kungenuma residence we heard that some army and navy soldiers might
attack me. Therefore I have been changing my residence from place to
place to avoid any attack. This was done upon advice of the police
~fficers which goes back to the tim wvhen I was premier, It was
revorted to me that the person who attempted to assassinate me was
canght in Hibiya Park,

Q. Did you ever ascertain the name of that attempted assassinator?
A, No, I did not hear his name,
Q. Could that person have veen from the Black Dragon Socliety?

A, I don't believe 1t was any member of the Black Dragon Socliety
but he was considered to be from Fukushima Prefecture.

Q. Do you know KUZUO, Yoshihisal

A, Yes, I know him,

Qe What was his reputation for truth and honesty?

A, After OCHIDA dieq, KUZUO was generally assisting the affairs
of the Black Dragon Sociely. He wae of a quiet disposition and
scholastically inclined.

Q. Do you know OBATA, Torataro!?

A. I think I ¥mew him when he was a boy. I believe later he went
to EKgrea..
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Q- Was this General OBATA who commanded the firat. Tokyo division?

A, No, it was an entirely different man.

Q. Did you know IKEDA, Hiroshi?

Qe Did you know YOSHIDA, Masuzo?

A. Yes,

Qe What is his reputation for honesty and truth?
A. Thet is not known to me. He lives in Cgaka,
Qe Do you know EOWATAR, Shin?

A, Yo,

Q: Do you know SAICHI, Iwao?

A, ¥o,.

Qs Do you know SAKAI, Rokusuke!?

Ay .+ B0

Q¢ Do you know KAWAHARA, Shinichiro?

& Vo

Q- Do you kmow Col. HASHIMOTC, Kingoro?

4. I know his neme.

Q What is his revutation as to honesty and truth?

A. I rather surmise he was a person considered highly eccentric.
Q. Was he a member of the inner group?

A. I do not know what inf luence he had in the army but he was known as
& commander of one of the group when trouble arose in the Tengtze River,

Q- That is in China?

;
\
?

A, Yes,

‘"’:. »
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Qe That would dbe about 1938, our calendar?

A. MNay bve.

Qe ‘ And the bombing of the Panai andtwo English gun boats?
A,

Yes., I remember being sent to the American and British Embassies
to extend regrets and apologies.

Q. Did you not also tender payment or part payment of theboat!
A. IQ" I did-

Qe You stated he was an eccentric. Was he a communist or a radical
of any sort?

A. I could not go as far as to say that but I might be adble to say
he was ultra nationalistic in his belief,

Qe Was he on duty in China at the time of the Locachio Bridge
incident?

A. T doubt it, I don't think he was.
Do you kmow NAKAKO, Seigol?

Yes,

o2

A,

Qs He was a member of the Diet, is that true?
A, Yes, He came from Fukuoka Prefecture,

Q

What is his recutation for truth and honesty?

A. He wae quite an able man because of his pen and his ability

to write and ability to deliver speeches and he constantly ran
counter to my idea in diplomatic relations,

Q. Did he favor war with the United States and Britain?

A. I could not tell whether he was or not but judging from speeches
he made the conclusion cannot be otherwise. One incident, one
noticeable incident of that was when NAKANO went over to ny native

prefecture Fukuocka and criticized the part I took in apologizing
for the Panai incident.

Q  Did you know Prof, KATO, Genchi?

A, I heard of his neme as being a professor in some university
but I don't know hil-

T T e
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Q.
A.

Did you know KIKUCHI, Toyasaburo?

I don't know him but I wonder whether he is the man who gerved as

Vice-Minister of education, I ¥mow him by name only.

Q.
A,

Qe
A.

I believe you stated you know TAKAHASHI, Kamekichi?

I ¥mow him by name only.

Did he not head the Department of Economic Research?

My understanding is that he must have some private research organiza-

tion for the economic situation in Japan.

Q.

Do you recall whether this was in connection with the so-called

Far Bastern Affairs in Manchuria incident?

A.

That I could not tell you distinctly becamnse I think I was out

of the country.

Qe
A,

S

P e PP

Do vou know FUJII, Yoshihisal

No, I do not.

Do you know OGATA, Taketoratl

Yes,

What is his reputation for truth and honesty?
I believe he is an honest man, |

Do you know GOTO, Fumiol

Tesn,

What is his reputation for honesty and truth?

I cannot help but think he held a good reputation. He held

minister's position several times,

Qe

A,
Qe
A.

Do you know OKABE, Nagakagel
Yes, He was on the staff of foreign ministry. He was a diplomat.
Was he an honest man?

I have not heard any bad reputation about him,

g '
Bl e
.
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Q. Did you know YOSHIDA, Shigerut?

A, Yes. Hg must be the present fdreign minister, I kmow him very
well.

Q. What is his rerutation for truth and honesty?

A. My believe is there is nothing against him, I know him ever
since we took examinations for the diplomatic service, I even felt
I would sponsor him for Minister of Foreign A,fairs of my cabinet,
However the military opposed that recommendation, Thereupon I
asked him to go to England as ambassador with the desire that
througk this aprointment he could work for the better relationship
between the two countries and as I mentioned before this identical
YOSHIDA brought the message to me urging me to become the premier
at one time,

Q. Do you know OSHIMA, Tatsujiro?

A, I don't remember him,

Q. Do-‘you know MATSUMOTC, Gakul

A. Yes I know him, He was the governor of Fukuoka Prefecture.
Q. What was his reputation for truth and honesty?

A. I have not heard anything bad about him,

Q. Did you appoint him as the governor of Fukuoka Prefecture!?

A, DNo, I did not.

Q. Did you know KOZAKA, Masayasu!

A, No.

Q. Did you know SAKAI, Tadamasal

A. Yes, I knew him, I met him at the H use of Peers occasionally.
Q. Was he a commnist?

A, No he is not a communist,

Q. What is his revutation for truth and honesty?

A, He was vice-president of the H use of Peers and 1 thought he

was a good man,
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Q.
A,

Do you know HASHIMOTO, Seinousuka?

Yes., He was also a member of the ngne of Peers and I met

him occasionally,

Qe
A-

What was his re-utation?

I don't know because I have not had very close personal

contacts with him,

Yo
A,

Q.
A,
Q.
A,

Did you know MACHIDA, Totsujiro?
I knew him by name only,

Do you know his reputation for truth and honesty?

That I could not tell you,

Do you know YUZAWA, Michio?

These last three were all members of the Hpuse of Peers and

ny acquantance with them is in just about the same degree,

Q
A,

Do you know TOMITA, Inosuke?

My recollection is not very clear but I think I knew him

about ten years ago.

Qe

A,
Qe
A,
Q.
A,
Qe
A.
Qe
A,
had

What was TOMITA at that time?
I don' t m-

You do not remember his reoutation for truth and honesty?
No.

Did you know ABE, Tonigo?

I believe he is a good man,

Is he an admiral?

No, he is non-military,

Do you know Gen,ABE, Nobuyuki?

Ye8, I knew him well because I had occasion to be with him when I
occasion to confer with the military leaders.

~26-
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Q¢ VWhat is hig revutation for truth amg honesty?

A. He was coneidered to be rather reserved and was made a premier,

Q. He was retired from the Army, was he not?

A, Yq8 he was,

A That name is unknown to me.,

Q- Did you know Maj. Gen. NAGATA

A, I do not Xmow him, Of courge I heard his pame but I do not kmow
him. I think he was assassinated,

He was superintendent of military
education and a war minister,

Q@  When was he assassinated,

A, P evious to the Feb.

26th incident, I dont remember
& Couple months before the

incident took place,
w Did you know FUJ II, Masanobu?

A, No,

e
A,

when but pérhapsa

Did you know Vice Ajmirsl HASEGAWA Ryoshi?
Yes, I knew him when he served as vice-minister of the navy,
@ VWhat is hig first name?

A, Kiyo shi,

' He resented, did he not, the Haahington.ﬂavaliArma Limitations
Conference?

A. I could not 8ay anything about this but I knew he was the naval
attache at Washington Embassy,

Q While you were at the Embassy?
A, Yes,
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A
Y=y

A, (continued) Ay the time I was in Washington the naval attaches were
3 HASEGAWA and one other man who died after becoming Admiral. I cannot
| think of his name just now but perhaps later on I will think of 1it,

8 R

Q@ Do you knmow DOIHARA, Kenjil
I know his name,
What is his reputation for truth and honesty?

I never had any versonal contact with him, I -rea.lly don't kmow,

A,
Qe
A,
Qe Do you know him as the Iawrence of Manchuria?
A, No, I do not.

Q Did not thie man set up a Special Service Organization for Japan!
A. That I do not know,

Qe

Was he probably a member of the inner circle?

A, HNo doudbt he must have been one of the members in the circle-
however what I heard about him was that he was rather gentle in
disposition,

Qe Do you see him often here in the prison!?

A. VWhen I was taken to the dining room this noon for the first time
I met him. I do not know his face very well but I suppose he is the
', one I met this noon,

Q. Did he ask you if you were being interrogated?

A. The only time I met him was when I went for my food - I think
I actually met him,

Qe Remember your oath to your ancestors. Did he ask you whether you
were being interrogated!? -

;r' A, My recollection is that there might be someone who did ask me
if I were being interrogated here but I could not tell you whether
it was BOIHARA that asked me thet question,

Q+ Did anyone this noon as you went for your food advise you
as to what answers to give during this interrogation?

N A, Ho.
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Q. Did you talk with Gen., DOIHARA at all when you went for food!?

A. No, I did not,

Y Q. Do you Xnow USHIO, Shigeneostela?
% A, I know one by the name of USHIO, Keinosuke, I know one by
that name. He was minister of Hyme Affairs in my cabinet. He at
present is serving as premier council,
Qe What is his reputation?
A. A very good man.
Qe Do you know BABA, Eiichi?
A, Yes, I talked to you about him this morning,
Q¢ What is hie reputation for truth and honesty!?
A. He was made finance minister for my cabinet becsuse I did not
think he was a bad man, But he maintained views on economic matters
which are quite different from those of TAHAHASHI as I said before.
Did you know TERAUCHI, Hisaichi?
Yes, he was minister of war in my cabinet,

What is his rank?

General,

N g

What is his reputation for truth and honesty?

A, He came recommended to us as one who had no affiliation with
any of the military factions. This gentleman never was assigned to
the war office or to staff headquarters in Tokyo., He always served
in outside areas and waes known to enjoy a reputation of neutral in
inner army affairs. He was considered to be the man to become war

minister to settle the Fgbruary 26th incident and also to reform the
wvar ministry affairs,

INTERROGATION ADJOURKED UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE,
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EIROTA, KOki, 28 Jenuary 1946.

FICATE OF INTERPRET

I, J. K. SANO, being sworn on oath, state that I truly translated the
questions and answers given from English to Japanese and from Japanese

to English respectively, and that the above transcriotion of such guestions
and answers, consisting of twenty-nine (29( pages, are true and accurate

to the best of my knowledge and belief.

J. K. SANO

Subscribed and svorn to before me thie 3let day of Jamuary, 1946.

Calhoun W,J Phelps
Duly Detailed Investigating O.ficer
International Prosecution Section, GHQ,SCAP.

CERTIFICATE OF STENOGRAPHER

! I, DINAE BRAUN, hereby certify that I acted as stenographer at the
interrogation set out above, and that I transcribed the foregoing questions and

answers, and that the transcription is true and accurate to the best of
ny knowledge and belief,"

DINAH BRAUN

TIFICATE OF

I, Calhoun W.J Phnlpn, Captain, ASH , certify that on the
3lst day of Jafiuary, 1946, personally appeared before me HIROTA, Koki,
and according to J.K.SANO, Interpreter, gave the foregoing answers to
the several questions set forth therein,

Tokyo,
Jamuary 31, 1946,

Calhoun W J, P&olps, Captain
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29342~ Opening Statement by Mr. Kamaoka.
74

2G381 * Exhibit 3232, an excerpt from the Tokyo Asahi
Shimbun of 15 October 1932 described a newspaper inter-
view with HIROTA, the then Ambassador to Moscow when he
arrived in Tokyo from his post. HIROTA stated in the
interview that Japan's despatch of troops to Manchuria

. after the outbreak of the Incident there temporarily

shocked Russia, who concentrated military strength on
the Soviet WManchurian Boundary. At that time Russia
had serious financial and other difficulties. There
seemed to be a rumor in Japan that Russia was at the
bottowm of the recent Manchuli Incident. This was an
instance which a great nation should be ashamed of. It
was the Soviet policy to make previous arrangements for
the peaceful settlement of disputes., This was reflected
in her apparent intention to conclude a non-aggression
pact with Japan and Manchukuo.

When former Forelign linister YOSHIZAWA called
at Moscow, Karakhan and Litvinov advanced a proposal for
conciuding a similar pact, and later declared the same
intention,

b § HIROTA stated that he believed Ambassador

I'royanovsky had undertaken negotiations in Tokyo on
29383 this problem. * There were aoprehensions in some
quarters that even if Russia concluded such a pact,
she would still attempt aggression in ideological war-
fare, but there was no need of such apprehensions.
Italy had concluded a non-aggression pact with Russia
but no trouble had arisen although in Italy HRed propa-
ganda was strictly prohibited. In Germany the existence
of Communists was offlicially admitted, vet that did not
end disputes with Russia, In HIRCIA's opinion, Japan
might conclude the same pact. It was meaningless for
Russia to conclude a non-aggression nact with Manchukuo.
The other party to the pact ought to be Japan. The
Soviet had given de facto recognition to Manchukuo and
not only desired a Manchukuan Consul in Manchukuo but -
also suggested that the Japanese Ambassador hold Man-
chukuan consulship concurrently. Russia would formally
recognize Manchukuo if it benefitted her and negotiations
for formal recognition would be pushed forward after con-
29384 sular exchange., * Delimitation of the Soviet-Manchurian
boundary had not yet become a subject of discussion.
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(Translation) | >

\

INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR 'THE FAR EAST

\
THE UNITED STATES OF AVERICA, et al,

- Y8 =

ARAKI, Sadao, et al.

- s S . —— -—---—-“—lﬁ-

Deponent: YONAI, Mitsumasa
Domicile: 1545 Fujimidai, Meguroku, Tokyo.

Having duly sworn an oath as on the attached sheet and in

accordance with the procedure followed in m’ country, I hereby depose as

follows:
1 was in the of fice of the Frenier from January 16, 1940, to

July 22 of the same year. MNr. HIROTA, Koki. , was Stute-Councillor in my

_' Cabinet while it lasted. One day during that pcriod, we had a talk ex-

clusively between ourselves, when I was informed of his opinions about the

fundamental principles of Japan's foreign policy. At that time, an alliance

| with Germany and Italy was being advocatetl by some of the Japanese.

Mr. HIROTA stated, on that occasion, to the efTect that the safer

course for Japan's foreign policy was to (eep contact witi Britain and the

United States, and that the Cabinet should make the conciliatory attitude
ﬁ clear as soon as possible. He pointed out the danger that Japan might be
] involved in the war if she concluded an alliance with Germany and Italy

and professed that he was absolutely against the conclusion of the proposed

Tri-Partite Pact. X

The State-Councillors, however, had no competency to participate

' B! in the decision of the Government and, accordingly, were not responsible for

B jt. T listened to the above opinions of Mr., HIROTA as an instructive

1 information,
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On this 11th day of September, 1947, at Tokyo.
(Signed) YONAI, Mitsumasa (Seal)

Sworn and subscribed before me on the above-mentioned date :nd

place,

| (Signed) MORISHIMA, Goro (Seal)
. | ~ Witness

&

..__...._.........
- " k)
e

E B QAIR

In accordance with my conscience I swear to tell the whole truth

withholding nothing amd adding nothing.
(Signed) YONAI, Mitsumasa (Seal)
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s =g Document, 2150 Exhibit #

(franslation)

(15 UNTTED STATES OF AMERICA, et al.
- VS8 -

APAKI, Sadao, et al.

AFFIDAVIT

_-__--_—-

Denonent: ARITA, Hachiro.
Date of birth: September 21, 1884.
Nomicile: 991 Yoyogi Nishihara, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo.

yaving first duly sworn an oath on the attached sheeb and in
accordance with the procedur e followed in my countrys 1 hereby depose 88

p.T™
. .j,;.u"ﬁa:

(1) Being anpointed as diplomat. eleve on December 28, 1909, I held

. - in the Japanese Far gign Office, 1 was appointed Foreign Minister in

{IIluTA Cabinet on April 2, 1936, amd resigned on February 25 197 After that,
1 assumcd the of fice of Forelgn Minister <uccessively in the KONOYE and the
I ANUMA Cabinets during the period from October, 1938, to August, 1939 and

i, Jic YONAT Cabinet from January, 1940, to July of the same Yyear.

(2) Early in August, 1937, at my summer villa on lake Yamanaka,

rananashi Prefecture, I received a telegram from Forelgn Minister HIROTA to
tlic offect that he wished to sec me promptly. I went up to Tokyo immediately,

and called at the official residence of the Forelgn Minister.

.-, /Mr. HIROTA spoke about his hard application in working ont remedial
measures for the collision between the Japanese and Chinese forces at Marco

Polo Bridge, and tnen revealed his opinion as follows:

w1+ is necessary to attain an amicable settlement of the present case
as quickly as possible, but, unfortunately, our of forts thus far have not ob-
tained the expected results yet. Noreover, it is hardly possible now to seize
proper chances for an amicable settlement of the cASE, since the direct liaison
with the leaders of the Nationalist Government under CHIANG, Kai-shek, has been
lost owing to their withdrawal to Nanking. Nevertheless, it is our earnest
desire that negotiations be opened in Some WAy or other in order to bring the
matter to a prompt settlement. Hereupon, I cannot but hope that such a person
as you, who have 2 career of ex-Forelgn Minister, would g0 to Shanghal and stay
there for the mr csent. Shanghal is an international city, where gather the
leaders of the various parties in China, including the Kwomintang of CHIANG,
Kai-shek, and 1t is believed that they also desire for a peaceful settlement of
tho matter. In view of these facts, 1 expect that they may possibly approach

yon with a view to peacci’ul settlement, and open the W&y for negotiations.
This I expect from the bottom of my heart."

/
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Spouking in this vay, he requested me 1o follow his thought and ,
yizit Shanghal without any specific mission, to stay there for the present. |
1 sympathized with him in that awkward predicament, and actually recognized
e or less significance in his proposal. Nevertheless, I wondered if my
sisit to Shnu~lail would be opportune, in consideration of the situation in
and out of thu counbry. 1 considered it would be regrettable if my visit |
tliere might produce a result against our objective, and told him my thought,
asking him to vailt until the following day for my answer of acceptance or re-

Misal. I requested, further, that he also should reconsider if the time was
oppurtune or not.

(3) When 1 met Nr. HIROTA on the following day, he had not given
up the hope and zeal of the preceding day, and earnestly persuaded me to gO
to Shanghai. I was moved by his zeal. As 10 the point of time, I had more
or less miszivings about 1t still. I thought, however, it was not proper
that I, out of office, should hold fast to my own opinion. Since Mr. HIROTA,
w0 was actually in the office of Foreign Minister, maintained it so per-
sistently, I should have obeyed his observation and judgment. And, thus, I
accepted his offer.

(L) I immediately set about selecting proper persons to take with
we and arranging far my travel to Shanghai. At the same time, I considered
it pecessary to ascertain the intention of the Ministers of War and the Navy
1)1 connection vath the poace terms vhich was said to have been decided among
tli superior heads of the Government , and, one day, met the Minister of the
vavy vho was an old acquaintance of mine, Though I do not remember the par-
t+oulars about the peace torms exactly, the Minister of the Navy affirmed
a1l of them, Rspecially, I remember it clearly that he positively affirmed
the. term of "no reparation', and cxpressed to me his firm resolution to carry
it through.

(5) Everything in arrangement was rcady, and I was about to start
fo:* Shanpghai, when, one day late in August, I was asked by Mr. HIROTA to
postpone gy Aeparture for a while. I purposely avoided to imquire into his
peasons, but I felt it urnlcasant to stay in Tokyo in an indefinite status,
since I had made up my mind to.pgo 0 Shanghai and completed all nccessary
arrangements, I, thereupon, proposed to start on the arranged day for a
tour of inspectiorn twough Nerth Manchurila and North China, as I had bad an
cnit. ot desira to know the recent situation in these areas. In case the
circunstances Ln Tokyo were chanzed and the obstacle to my visit to Shanghail
wae pemoved, the Foreign Minister could order me by vire to go directly to
Shanpghai. Nr, HIROTA agreed to it.

(5) 'Thereupon, I left Tokyo on August 28 for North Manchuria, and
thon visited Peking and Tientsin to inspect the state-of affairs there. The
~waited notice from the Forelgn Minister, however, was not received after all.
[ returned to Japan on board the Neklka lMaru, leaving Dairen on September 21,

S
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On this 21st day of August, 1947, at Tokyo.
(Signed) ARITA, Hachiro (Seal)

Sworn to and subscribed beforc me on the above-mcntioned date and

placc-
(5igned) MORISHIMA, Goro (Seal)

Witness

0ATH

In accordance with my conscience I swear to tell the whole truth,

withholding nothing ard adding nothing.
(5igned) ARITA, Hachiro (Seal)
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2

(Translation)

INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FCR THE FAR EAST

" WUE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, et al.

A NN+ aim

ARAKI, Sadao, et al.

Deponent: ARITA, Hachiro.
Date of birth: September 21, 1884.
Domicile: 911 Yoyogi Nishigahara-machi, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo.

Having first duly sworn an oath as on the attached sheet, in

accordance with the procedure preﬁailing in my country, I hereby depose as
follows:

(1) I was appointed as an eleve-consul on December 28, 1909, re-
m2ining in thg service of the Foreign Office till I assumed the office of
Foreign Minister in the HIROTA Cabinet on ppril 2, 1936, and resigning from
the office on February 2, 1937. Later, I was Foreign Minister in theIKONOYE
and HIRANUMA Cabinets from October 1938 to August 1939, and Forelgn Minister

in the YONAI Cabinet from January 1940 to July of the same year,

(2) Mr. HIROTA was appointed State Councillor 1in the YONAI Cabinet.
The "system of Ehé State Councillors had been established in the time of the
First KONOYE Cabinet, The succeeding HIR/ANUMA Cabinet retained the system, (
with the State Councillars remaining in their office, but, when the YONAI

Cabinet was formed, three or four of them whose opinions were apparently not

L

in an agreement with the poligy of the new Cabinet tendered their resignation. 3
Mr. MATSUOKA, Yosuke, was among those who resigned. His appcintment as State

Counc illor was considered to be due to the estimation of his knowledge and
experiences in diplomacy, and Premier YONAI asked for my advice in choosing

the man to succeed Mr. MATSUOKA in his office. 1 recommended Mr. HIROTA, who

was considered to be of opinions contrary to those of Mr. MATSUOKA, and he

r l"""—
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was appointed State Councillor in March, 1940. I recommended him because I
was well aware of the fact that he was a man of sound diplomatic opinions
and that he was against the conclusion of the Tripartite Pact between Japan,

Germany and Italy.

(3) The YONAI Cabinet resigned en masse in July, 1940, and the
Second KONOYE Cabinet was formed. It is a matter of common knowledge that
the Tripartite Pact was concluded shortly after tha£.

I used to call on Mr, HIROTA to exchange.views with reference to
diplomatic problems. One day after the conclusion of the Trapartite Pact,

I called on him as usual and had a talk on various subjects. On that
occasion, Mr. HIROTA reiterated his opinion against the Tripartite Pact.

He said he could not quite understand from what necessity the Fact in question
had been concluded. The most important thing of the time should have been
the termination of the China Affair. The said Pact would surely cause grave
reaction on the part of the United Sta!‘s and Britain. China, of course,
would not lose any chance to take advantige of this state of affairs, and

the settlement of the China Affair would naturally become all the more
difficult. He further pointed out that Japan had so far been able to keep
its economy going through friendly intercourse with Britain and the United
States, and that, in case Japan fell in strained relations with Britain

and the United States, its future economic development could never be
expected. Hc then turned to the relations between Japan and the Soviet

Union and pointed out the possibility of an undesirable change of the Soviet
attitudes. He also expressed his deep anxiety about the disadvantageous
offeet which the cenclusion of the Pact might have upon Japan's intarnational
standpoint.

On the same occasion Mr. HIROTA told me that when the Cabinet
called a meeting of the senior statesmen who had once held the portfolio of
Prcmier to make a report before them of the Tripartite Pact :i_.gmediat.ely after
the signing of the said Pact, Foreign Minister MATSUOKA, according to Mr,.

HIRCTA, was the principal speaker and explained the Pect article by article,
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together ‘'with circumstances in which the Pact was concluded, for about two
hours, Mr. HIROTA told me that he put several questions to the above effect,

Mr, NJ;TSUOKL,'however, only answercd that it was a matter of opinions, and no

convincing replies were obtained,

Of several meetings which I had with ¥r. HIROT., I remember cne
which took place on April 16, 1941, when he rcvealed his feelings that the
course of the foreign policy of the Cabinct seemed very dangerous, and
deplored the fact that he was reglly anxious about the future of Japan,

(4) 4s the Amy gained in its political influence after the oyt-
break of the Manchurian incident, military men came to talk frequently about.
the so-called "general intcentien" of the Army. At the same time, a word
"sulshinryoku" (drlving.pcwer) Was used far and wide, frequently appearing in
newsSpapers and magazines. Ard this "driving power", invisible and intangible,
meddled in Japan's external and internal affairs, making various demands,

The Government of the time was tco weak to make headway against it., Such was
concerned in the affairs of state. In the meantime, some of the military
men even came to act against the Government policy. It was not quite casy,
however, for the Government to take proper amd effectual measures to suppress
them,

In consideration of such circumstances, the opinion gradually gained
in influence that it would be more desirable to choose the Premier from among
the generals on the active list, or on the retired lJ.st., who could exercise
strong control over the Airmy. It was so hoped becausc they axpected that the

o military might become the more prudent in their bchaviours amd the control
over the rockless actions of some uilitax;y officers might get the more

effectual as a result of that. Mr, HIROTZ also sot forth the similar-opinion

in our frequent meetings.




Defense Document 2552 ~ SN 3

- =
y ’ On this 9th day of Septcmber, 1947, at Tokyo.
(Sigried) ARITA, Hachiro (Seal)
Sworn to and subscribed before mc on the above-mentioned date and
place.

(Simmed) MORISHIMA, Goro (Seal)

Vitness.

OATH

In accordance with my conscience I swear to tell the whole truthy

wit hholding nothing and adding nothing.
(signed) ARITA, Hachiro (Scal)
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INTSRNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FAR EAST

i,

THE UNITED STATES CF AMERICA, et al.

Paper i 1290
- VS =
ARAXI, Sadao, et al.
MOTION OF WM’ FOR AN ORDER TO PROFOUND
CERTAIN INTERROGATORIES TCO THE HONORABLE SIR RCBERT

CRAIGIE, FURMER AMBASSADUR OF GREAT BRITAIN TO JAPAN,
BY CABLE

Now comes the defendant Hirota, Koki, by his attorneys named
below, and moves this Honorable Tribunal for an Order allowing certain,
interrogatories attached hereto to be propounded to the ronorable Sir
Robert Craigie, former Ambassador of Great Britain to Japan between the

years 1937-1942, by cable through the Office of the Prosecutors for the

United Kingdom and to take the answers of said witness to said interrogatories

byfcable, transmitting a copy of said questions and answers 1o counsel for
said defencant. In this connection counsel represent to this Honorable
Tribunal the following:

In July 1947 counsel for the defendant sent to Sir Robert Craigie
in London certain excerpts taken from his book entitled "Behind the Japanese
Kask" and requested him to incorvorate said excerpts or the substance

thereof in an affidavit for use on behalf of said defendant. Several weeks
ago counsel received a wire from Sir Robert Craigie stating that affidavits

were not beinz put in but that he would be glad to answer any interrogatories

submitted by mail or cable on behalf of Hirota, Hiranuma and Shigemitsu.
Counsel are advised through additional information that the British Foreign
Office has taken the line thet affidavits will not be put in by personnel
still engaged in the work of the Foreign Office and that the procedure
adopted at the Nurnberg trial will be followed in this instance; that is to

say, testimony will be put in only through interrogatories. As two months
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have already elapsed in the effort to secure the testimony of Sir Robert
Craigie and very little time is left within which to secure his testimony,
counsel wish to adopt the suzgestion of Sir Robert Craigie and submit the

attached interrogatcries by cable and to allow the ansvers to be also

recorded by cable, all through the Office of the Frosecutors for the United

Kingdom or such other means as the Tribunal may direct.

"HEREFORE the defendant prays that this Honorable Tribunal will |
E, enter an Order allowing the attached interrogatories to be propounded to |
Sir Robert Craigcie by cable through such channels as the Tribunal may direct

and to permit the answers to be recorded in the same manner with the pro-

vision that a copy thereof be transmitted to counsel immediately upon

Zﬁd ahit / lé‘?ﬂ_'/f ”"’i

Hanai, Tadashi
Japanese Counsel

receipt thereof.

Pro hac vice
American Counsel

NCTICE

T0: " The Chief of Prosecution Counsel and the
International Prosecution Staff:

Flease take notice that the foregoing Motion will be put down for
hearing at such time as the Secretary of the Tribunal shall designate.
Service of a copy of the foregoing Motion and Notice of Hearing admitted

this day of | ,» 1947,
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INTERNATICNAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FAR EAST

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, et al. Paper # 1290

o VS -

ARAKI, Sadao, et al.,

INTERROGATCRIES TC BE FROPOUNDED TU THE HONORABLE SIR
ROBERT Cr:-IGIE BY CABLE. THE ANSWERS ARE TC BE RE-

CORDED BY CAELE. THE ADDRESS OF SIR ROBERT CRAIGIE,

(1) c/o UNITED NATICNS /AR CRIMES COMMISSION, LANSDUWNE
HOUSE, BERKELEY SQUARE, LONDON V-1, ENGLAND, OR (2)

POSSING'/ORTH MANCR, NRAR UCKFIELD, SUSSEX, ENGLAND.

Questions to be propounded on behalf of the
Honorable Hirota, Koki:

QUESTION NO. 1:

ANS''ER ¢

GUESTICN NO. 2:

ANSER:

CUESTION NO. 3:

HANSVER ¢

CUESTION NO. 4:

ANS''ER 2

- ; . - - - - ;
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Please state your name, acdress and period of service as

nmbassador of Great Britain to Japan,

Please state in reasonable detail your official and private
acquaintance with Hirota, Koki, during your service as

Ambassador in Japan.

#hile Mr. Hirota occupied the office of Foreign Minister
and Prime Minister did he ever advise you with respect to
the attitude of the Japanese Government toward relations

with Great Britain and all other foreign countries?

During your service in Japan did you ever observe or obtain
reliable information with respect to the exertions on the
part of Mr. Hirota tending to arrest extreme views enter-

tained in some quarters in Japan?

g "
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QUZSTICN NO. 5% Please state whether complaints of the British and American

= Government s were given prompt attention by the Foreign

P

Office during the tenure of jir. Hirota in the Foreign Office,

~NSVER ¢

«UZSTION NU, 6: FPlease state briefly the position Mr., Hirota took upon the
accldental shelling of the LADYBIRD and the wounding in
China of Sir Hughe.

AMNSVER ¢

“UESTION NO. 7: Did you ever observe any activity on the part of Mr.
Hirota or the Japanese Foreign Office tending to éhow that
elther Mr. Hirota or the Foreign Office was engaged in a
comnon plan or conspiracy to bring about the Lu-Kow-Chiao
Incident of July 75 1937, or otherwise that M\r. Hirota was
personally engaged in any common plan or conspiracy to
dominate the world or East isia op any race or people
living in any part of the world?

+4NSVER ¢

QUESTION NO. 8: Flease state, 1f you know, the basic reasons which

influenced Japan not to accenpt the Brussels invitation.

A OLTY
JJ..I'“'S'.."J :

WUESTION NO. 9: Flease state in reasonable detail the efforts of Mr, Hirota
to work out peace with China immediately following the
Lu-Kow-Chiao Incident of July 7, 19373 the part played
therein by yourself angd other diplomatic representatives
in Japan and elsewhere.

ANSWER ¢

: QUESTION NO. 10: Did Mr. Hirota have any connection with the negotiations
for or conclusion of the TriePartite Pact? i

ANSWER :




QUESTION NO. 11:

/.NS'IER :

QUESTION NO. 12:

fuNSWW# -
QUESTION NO, 13:

ANSWER ¢

Do you have any information with respect to Mr. Hirota'!s

position as a private citizen in regard to the Tri-Partite

Pact?

Rased upon your official and personal contacts with Mr.
Hirota, are you in a position to state whether or not Mr.
Hirota exerted his best efforts to avoid friction with
Great Britain and the Uniﬁed States and whether or not he

sought to maintain the peace?

Flcase state an& additional facts which came to your

attention which you feel would be useful to the Tribunal
in determining the guilt or innocence of Mr. Hirota with
respect to charges pending agains®% him bgiere the above-

named Tribunal,
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Chronological Statement of Evidence introduced

during the Defence
| on the Defendant Koki HIROTA.

A Bvidence relating to events whilst he was Ambassador to the USSR: 0ot

15th 1930 - Novr. 19th, 1932,

Exh. 2671 (page 23,218)s in which Witness KASAHARA admitted in Cross-examination
that if circumstances demanded, it would be essential in the war to draw
the countries adjacent to the Soviet into the war and Japan's C+I,C.
should be located with attention to strategic view point, Witness did
not believe that HIROTA &8s Ambassador shared his views, HIROTA may have
said to Major General HARADA that the seizure of the Soviet Far East
and Siberia rather than defence against Communism was the main $ask of
war with the Soviet, but witness felt HIROTA must have had scme motive
other than this in mind in saying such a thing, since they were not his
formal ideas. (‘mrch 1931).

Exh. 693 (page 23,24l4)s Witness KASAHARA admitted in Cross-examination that he
recorded the words that HIROTA transmitted to the Chief of the General
Staff that it is necessary for Japan to have a strong policy against
Russia being ready for war at any time. Its principal purpose is not
defence against Communism but the conguest of Fastern Siberia. (1931).

Witness KASAHARA stated in re-direct exammination (page 23,262) that with
respect to the repart on the conversation with HIROTA he did noi make
-this to the General Staff.

; Fvidence relating to events whilst he was Foreign Minister Sept. l4th,
1933 - April 2nd 1936.

Witness KONDO stated (p. 26,688) that he knew as early as stptember 19534 ,
that OKADA and HIROTA had declared that the Washington Treaty was going
to be abrogated even if the other nations agreed to Japan's proposal.

Witness KONDO denied (pe 26.703) the above aﬁtmt saying he had made
an error and that OFKADA and HIROTA did not say any such thing.

Affidavit of ENOMOTO (p. 26,782 et seq) contains a description of the

London Naval Conference attended by Japan in 1934 and 1935 Both
Conferences ended in failure and witness gives reasons for dissgreement

between powers.

Exh., 2434 (pe 19,728)1 Bpeech by Fareign Minister HIROTA in the Diet, 21 January
1936 concerning Japan = Manchukuo co-operation.

Evidence relating to events whilst he was Prime Minister : March 9th
1936 = Feb. 2nd 1937,

Exh. 704 (pe23,008): Decision of the Premier, Foreign, War and Navy Ministers,
7 April, 1936, stated there will be an establisiment of two comiitees
for dealing with matters of border lines and frontiers between
! Manchukuo and the Soviet and Mongoliae

Comunist International and the “ecret Lttached Pact aga nst the Soviet.
At the Investigating Cammittee of the Privy Council HIROTA is referred
to as giving his views on the position of the Soviet Union. Novr. 20th

J 1936,

M (pe 22,480): Japanese-German Pact comprising the pact against the
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De Bvidence relating to events whilst he was Foreign Minister;
June 4th 1937 = May 29th 1938.

Witness OFADA (pe 18,325) denied the validity of Exh. 841 with covering
Memorandum from ARIYAMA to HIROTA, (June 23rd 1937).

Exh. 2497 (p.20,816): Address by HIROTA in the Diet on 17 July 1937.

Exh. 2496 (p.20,805)s Talk by Foreign Office spokesman on 20 July 1937
concerning the Chinese answer to the Japanese note of 17 Julye.

Witness TANAKA stated (p. 20,698) that a Five Minister Conference was
held on 20 July 1937, on the policy towards North China. HIROTA attended
in his capacity as Foreign Minister.

Exhe 2495 (pe20,803)s Comment of the Foreign Offioa.r July 1937, with reference
to the Chinese reply of 19 July.

Bxh. 2497 (p. 20,816)s Speelh by HIROTA on 27 July 1937, in which he publicly
urged the Soviet to co-operate for avoiding border disputes.

Exh, 2503 (p.20,873)s Statement of HIROTA to the Press = 2 September 1937,
Exh, 2502 (pe 20,868); Address of HIROTA in the Diet on 5 September, 1937.

Exh, 2531 (p. 21,390): Reply by Jepen to Grew regerding the bombing of Nanking
30 September, 1937, stating that as Narking is the central base of
military operations, it was unavoidable that military establishments in
and around Nekfnz be bombed.

Witness KAWABE in Cross-Examination (p. 22,034) stated he did not know
how many Cabinet Members discussed the terms whereby China should bLe
campelled to recognise Manchukuo,at the Meeting on 1 October 1937, but Le
did know that the General Staff participated in the general study.
HIROTA was present at this meeting.

Witness HIDAKA (pe 21,453):1 stated in Direct Examination that at the em

of January 1938 he made an oral report to Foreign Minister HIROTA on the
conditions in Nanking,

Bxh, 2527 (pe21,367): Note from Foreign ldnister HIROTA to Craigie dated 14
December 1937, expressing Japan's regret at the incidents of the 12th
involving the bombardment of British Meneof-War and giving assurances
of steps taken by Japan to investigate the matter and prevent a recurrenoce

Witness KAVAEE in Cross-Examination (p.22,054) Baid the Imperial Confer-
ence held on 11 January 1938, was not hell because of divergence of views
between Government and General Staff. He had never heard that the detoil

ed terms decided by the Conference were withheld by HIROTA and never
submitted to China,

Witness Hmm (pe 21.&.53)' stated in Direct Examination that at the end
of Jamuary 1938, he made an oral report to Foreign Minister HIROTA on
the conditions in Nanking,

KAGTSA stated (p. 21;.5!;2) that the Five-Minister Conference at which
it was decided to send him to Shanghai, took place in March 1938,
HIROTA was Foreign Minister at this time.




Exhibit 108

Exhibit 102

Exhibit 1104
Exhibit 744

Exhibit 692
P bAoA

Exhibit 225

Exhibit 745

Exhibit 1105

Exhibit 1106

STATEMENT OF EVIDENCE INTRODUGED BY PROSECUTION

ON TEE DEFENDANT

Koki HTROTA

This defendant held the following offices between the following
datess

Oct. 15th 1930 = Nov. 19th 1932 - Ambassador to U.S.S.R.
Sept.l4th 1933 = April 2nd 1936 - Foreign Minister.
March 9th 1936 - Feb., 2nd 1937 ~ Prime Minister.

June 4th 1937 - May 29th 1938 - Foreign Minister. y
June 10th 1937 = Oct. 25th 1937 - President of Planning Board. i

The evidence egainst him in chronological order is as followss -

(page 706) Biography of HIROTA

(page 685) List of officeholders in the Imperisl Japanese Government.

A, Evidence relatinz to events durinz the period
he was bassador to the U.S.3.R., Oct. 15th 1930 -

ov. 19th 1932.

(page 10,068) Stimson's Affidavit deals with Japanese aggression in
Manchuriz and consequent breach of numerous treaties and promises.

(page 7714) Litvinov's Diery extract. His offer of non-aggression
pact to Yoshizawa and Hirota December 193l.

(page TU4T7) Conversation between HIROTA and Harada in 1931 re
Armament for possible war with Russia.

(page 2830) Cabinet decision made on 12 Aug 1932 ¥SCTEROTRCRGES
Foretgoopinteter concerning aviation rights in Manchuria. In view
of development of Manchuria and with future idea of acquiring
aviation rights in China proper, the operation of these rights is
considered essential,

(page 7719) Jep reply to Russian non-aggression suggestion "untimely"”.
Delivered by Uchida.

B. Evidence relatinz to ewvents whilst he was Fore ion
Minister Sept, 14th 1933 - April 2nd 1936.

(page 10,089) This is an affidavit of JOSEPH CLARK GREW Ambassador to ,
Japan from June 1932 until Dec. 7, 1941. HIROTA was Minister of Foreign .
Affairs from September 1933 until April 1936 and is mentioned by name 3
in this affidavit,

Committee on the Investigation of the Pearl Harbor attack. HIRCTA was
Foreign Minister from September 1933 until April 1936 and is mentioned by
name regerding the note to HULL on difficulties existing between Japan
and the United States and his assurance during April 1934 that Japan had "
no intention of seeking special privileges in China. \ ¥

(page 10,111) This is testimony of CORDELL HULL before Joint Congressional ]
i
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Exhibit 384 (page 4733) Order of Manchukuo Govermment for establishment of
i laboratories and factories for narcotics at Harbin, Mukden and
‘ Chengteh Oct. 25th 1933. :

Exhibit 234 (page 2933) 22 Dec. 1933: Cabinet decision concerning the preparations
: for enforcing a monarchy in Manchukuo.

Exhibit 174 (page 1806) Note from HIROTA, Foreign Minister, 21 Feb. 1934,z2ssuring
Cordell Full that Japan's problems with U.S. could all be solved amicably.

Exhibit 4374 (page 5015) Excerpt from Manchukuo Government Bulletin of March lst 1934
gives full information re organic law of Manchukuo.

Exhibit 236 (page 2939) 20 March 193)4: Cabinet decision on 'Summary of Jap-
Manchurian Economical Admin. Policy.

Exhibit 703 (page 7516) March 1934: Flan for strengthening Army in North Manchuria
for operations agzinat USSR sanctioned by Emperor.

Exhibit 378 (page 46S9) April 1, 1934: Report from U.S. Treasury Attache at Shanghai
gives information on Japanese loans to encoursge ponpy #&rowing in Jehol.

RALIANTINE, in his affidavit (page 10,720) stated that HIROTA sent a

note to HULL stating his belief thot no guestion existed between United
States and Japan vhich could not be settled by amicazble means. Neverthe-
less, on 17 April 1934, the Foreim Office issued the AMAU Stetement in
which Japan made clear its purpose to compel China to follow Japan's
dictates and to permit other countries to have relations with China, only
if Japan so allowed.

Exhibit 935 (page 9389) This is an unofficial statement from the Japznese Foreign
Office dated April 17, 1934, known as the AMAU Statement at the time
when HIROTA was Foreign Minister. In this statement Japan's reasons
for withdrawing from the league of Nations were given and Japsn's mission
and special responsibilities for preserving peace in East Asia were
emphasised. Only Chine could share this responsibility with Japan and
therefore the unification of China was greatly desired. In striving for
this Japan would oppose any attempt on the part of China to avail herself

A of any other country to resist Japan. Complications arising from tech-
nical or financial assistance to China after the Manchurien and Shanghai
incidents were set forth as well as Japan's opposition to these projects.

BALLANTINE stated (page 11,056) that he had HIROTA's explanatory and
pacific statements to Grew in mind wkhen he made the part of his affidavit

about the AMAU statement of April 17th 1934.

Exhibit 936 (page 9393) This is a telegram from GREW to EULL (April 25th 1934)
regarding the AMAU Statement and the interview that Grew had with
HIROTA who wished to clarify the statement. HIROTA denied that Japan
sought special privilege in China or wished to create difficulties in
trade of other countries.

Exhibit 937 (page 9395) This is a memorandum by HULL of May 19th 1934 when the
Japanese Ambassador called on him and read a telegram fram HIROTA,

Foreign Minister. This was a re-statement of the statement made in
Iondon in April., The importance of solving matter in a friendly way
was stressed by Mr, Hull,
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Exhibit 965

Exhibit 373

Exhibit 748

Exhibit 405

Exhibit 939

Exnibit 749

Exhibit 58

Exhibit 451

Exhibit 942

Exhibit 213

Exhibit 443A

Exhibit 941

The formulas about Japan's special interest in the Far East was dis-
cussed and the Ambassador denied that this contained an ultimate
motive of an Overlordship of the  Orient. On being questioned as to
the real reasons why Japan left the Ieague of Nations, the Ambassador
became evasive.

(page 9481) Memorandum from Grew to HIROTA of 31 Aug. 1934 states

that the apparent plan far monopolizing of oil in Manchuria leads to
the conclusion that Japan is setting up a monopoly of oil there, which
would be against the 'open door' principle., These plans are being
formulated under Japanese guidance, therefore the U.S. is approaching
Japan, bearing in mind Japan-Manchurian relations and treaties and
assurances concerning 'open door' policy in Manchuria.

(page 4670) 0ét. 20, 1934: Asst. Sec. to U.S. Treasury Dept. sent
letter to the Commissioner of Customs re its survey of the opium
situation in Chinsa, \ A

(page 7739) Oct. 23rd 1934: Official statement of USSR Consulate
General et Harbin to N. Manchurian special agent of Japanese Foreign
Office. This referred to repeated requests regarding violations in
Chinese Eastern Railway area resulting in arrest of Soviet nationals.

(page 4820) Nov. 9, 1934: U..S. Tregsury Attache, Shanghei, reported
negotiation of huge transaction between Japan, Formosan Covernment and
Amoy Combine for opium,

(pege 9406) This is a memorandum from the American Embassy in Japan
to Foreign Minister HIROTA, Nov. 30, 1934, regarding the memo of
Nov. 5th. This stated that control of the o0il industry in Manchuris
was not within the, knowledge of Japan.

BALL:NTINE testified (page 10,721) that on 29 December 193/ while
HIROTA was Foreigzn Minister, Japan gave notice of its withdrawal from
the Washington Naval Treaty of 6 February 1922. '

(pagé 7742) On Dec, 15, 1934, the Vice-President of the Chinese
Eastern Railway wrote to Fresident Li-Shao-Gen protesting sgainst
illegal seizure of railway auarters and buildings by Japanese, Wwhich
hampered normal functioning of railway.

-

(page 9199) With regard to the decision of the Privy Council in 1934
to abrogate the Weshington Naval Treaty and the dreft instructions to
SATTO, it appeared that HIROTA desired to deley the formel notice until
after the cdjournment of the present London conversations to avoid the
charge that Japen disrupted them.,

(page 5112) Official organization of Manchurian APfairs Boord.
Imperial Ordinance Dec. 26, 1934.

(page 9416) Dec. 29th 1934: Official Japanese notification of
termination of Vashington Naval Treaty.

(page 2708) Extract from Summary of Japanese Var Crimes in China 31-37
refers to negotiations Chinese attempted with HIROTA in 1935 concerning
Japanese violation of TANGU TRUCE by illegal flights over China,

(page 5042) Excerpt from "Official Manchukuo Government Bulletin

from January to March 1935" relating to the negotiations concluded by
HIROTA in the Purchase Agreement by Manchukuo fram the USSR of the
North Manchurian Rai lway (China Eastern Railway fram the Soviet Union).

(page 9413) This shows aral statement by the American Ambassador GREW

 to Foreign Minister HIROTA on April 16, 1935, regarding the creation

of an oil monopoly in Manchuria and the part played by Jepan. This

. — -




— - - — - ': iy — N - — - -— - g — —— _-H__.- i

| 4.

would have a bad effect on public opinion in the U.S.

Exhibit 850 (page 8417) HIROTA attended the Privy Council meeting of 3 July 1935
held to discuss the conclusion of Toint Economic Agreement between
Japan and Manchukuo - Plan was unanimously agreed upon.
(Notes The Court was erroneously informed by the Prosecution (page
8,418) that HIRANUMA was the only one of the accused present at
this meeting.) Statements by HIROTA were read (pzges 8427,8429).

i Exhibit 445 (page 5055) July 15, 1935; Japan=Manchukuo Economic Commission

j Agreement was signed.

(

| Exhibit 851 (page 8433) Liebert testified that on July 17, 1935, an agreement

| regarding the Joint Economic Committee of Japan and Manchukuo was '
. rﬁachea-

) Exbibit 134 (page 1018) As Minister for Foreign Affairs, HIROTA signed the

ordinance of the Youth School Military Drilling Cour se 9 Aug. 19735.

Exhibit 136 (page 1019) August 13, 1935: Inspection regulations for military
training at youth schools.

Exhibit 938 (page 9403) Sept. 05, 1935: Statement by FULL re sutonomy movement
in North China and U.S.A. attitude thereto,

Exhibit 197 (page 2283) Oct. 2, 1935: Two cebles from WAKASUGI, Secretery
General to Japanese Embassy Peiping to Foreign Minister HIROTA
regarding rumours of establishment of independent stete ouv of
province of North China, and progress of Japanese Forces Mongolicn
policy. :

Exhibit 1307 (page 11,768) Official announcement of the Japanese Foreign

| Ministry on 31 October 1935, stated that the Japanese=-Ne therlands

| Treaty of 1933 had been ratified and a Permanent Conciliation
Commission composed of five members was set up under Article 12 of
the Treaty. This Commission was to be & permanent organization,
binding until 12 August 1940 and for a further remeining five years
if not denounced six months prior to that date. Japen informed the

| Ne therlands of the abrogation of the Treaty on 12 January 1940.

Liebert testified (page 8436) that in November 1935 the Yen Bloc was
established to include Manchuluo. Manchukuo currency Wwas cut off
its silver basis end established at par with the Yyen.

Exhibit 1G2 ( page 2702) "Preparatory Committee for Autonomy in the Var Zons *
organized on Nov. 24, 1935, This followed Japanese attempts to
change the political structure of N. China and set up an antonomy .

Exhibit 192 (page 2702) Nov. 25th, 1935, Japanese established Japanese dominated
and controlled Eastern Hopel Anti-Comintern Autonomous Council in the
demilitarized zone established by the Tangu Truce. The Council pro-

claimed independence of the Nationzl Government.

Exhibit 211 (page 2704) Dec. 18, 1935: General Sung Cheh Yuan was appointed
Chairman of Hopei-Chahar Foliticel Council established for
administration of North China.

Exhibit 2226 (page 15,977) Statement issved by HIROTA on the withdrawal of the
Japznese delegates from the ILondon Naval Conference, 16 Tanuary 1936.

e Exhibit 215 (page 2719) HIROTA as Foreign Minister sent nGist of plans for
} dealing with North China®, 13 Jan. 1936, to Japenese Ambassador 1o

| China - Plans were drawn up 1l Foreign Ministry which dealt with
. self-government of N. China, cooperation with Japen, etc.




Exhibit 945

Exhibit 753

Exhibit 704

Exhibit 406

Exhibit 212B

Exhibit 391

Exhibit 93

Exhibit 392

Exhibit 237

Exhibit 9.8

Exhibit 977

Exhibit 978

o IS ..-.'- i

(page 9421) Jan. 15, 1936: Japanese give notice of withdrawal from
London Conference on naval armaments,

(Note: HIROTA became Prime Minister on March 9th 1936 and thereafter
ceased to be Foreign Minister on April 2nd 1936.)

C. idence relatinz to events whilst he was Prime
Minister, March 9s 1936 ~ February 2, 19737,
(page 7755) Russian report on Japanese Provocative Actions in the
area of Lake Khasan 21 March 1936,

(page 7523) Decision of the Premier, Foreign, War and Navy Ministers,
7 April 1936, stated that North China must be made o special anti-
Communist and pro-Japanese zone and that eventually all China must be
made pro-Japanese and anti-Soviet.

(page 482)) April 20, 1936; U.S. Treasury Attache, Shanghai, issued
report on cheap sale of Fersian opium in Foochow, Fukien Autonomy Council
is about to materialize, supported by Japanese consulates in Amoy and
Switow. This Council's financial resources will be obtained from
amuzgling and drug traffic.

(page 2705) Cable from Jepanese Ambassador to China coneerning plan to
found Mongolian Stete 7 May 1936.

(Page 4780) May 9, 1936: U.S. Treasury Attache at Shunghui reports

that following Manchurian Incident heroin manufacture was talen over
by the Jap:nese. Peasants were forced to grow poppies and opium and
heroin production increased three or four times.

(page 506) Imperial Qrdinsnce No. 63 of May 18, 1936, restored the
old rule that Var and Navy Ministers ang Vice-Ministers must be
generals and admirals in active service.

Liebert testified (page 6356) that on May 29, 1936, the Automobile
Induatry Control law was enacted. Its object was firmly to establish
the industry in order to adjust the naticnal defence.

(page 478L4) June 8, 1936, U.S. Treasury Attache at Shanghai reported
the establishment of the narcolization policy of the six Hsiens of
North Chahar, the setting up of distribution points in shops zand
stores and the transportinz of the drugs from North Chahar %o Kalgran
and Test Charhar,

(page 2944) June lo, 1936: Treaty between Japan and Manchukuo giving
Japanese in Manchuria equal rights with Manchurians,

(page 9427) June 12, 1936: MNemorandum by Hull staeting U.S.A. had
impression Japan was seeking economic domination, first of East Asis,
then of other places.

(page 9542) Basis of National Policy by Var and Navy Ministries June
30, 1936, includes "a consistent policy of overseas expansion™.
Considered same day by conference of Premier, Army, Navy, Foreign and
Finance Ministers (Exhibit 978). At end Premier said he had no
objection,

(page 9548) Conference of 30 June 1936, attended by Premier EIROTA
entitled "Matters Pertaining to the OQutline of State Policy". Policy
consists of a steady footing of Japan on Eastern Continent and develop-

ment of South Seas by diplomatic measures and national defense. (See
Exhibit 977).
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Exhibit 410 (page 4830) July 10, 1936; FReport by U.S. Treasury Attache in
Shanghai re illegal activities by Formosans in Amoy, Formosan Trade
Union had been established under the Japanese Consulate to safeguard
smugglers and with a business department devoted solely to the buying
' " and selling of opium,

Exhibit 979 (page 9549) Fundamental of our national policy 'signed by Prime Minister
HIROTA and others, of 1l August 1936. This policy relates to the
eradication of USSR menace, preparations against U.S. and Great Britain,
and expansion in South Seas.

Exhibit 217 (page 2728) Excerpt from Foreign Ministry file Important Decisions re
International and National Policies. The second administrative policy
towards North China - determined by the Ministries concerred, 1l Aug.

1936.

Exhibit 216 (page 2720) HIROTA as Prime Minister was responsible for, and mde,
+he decision on 'Basic Principle of National Policy, 7 Aug. 1936! .
Principles were:- security of Japanese Empire by diplomacy and
military preparations, eradication of Soviet menace and preparations
egainst Britain and U.S.

Exhibit 751 (page 7750) Excerpt from Rissian report on provocative actions of the
Japanese in the Lake Hanka area October and November 1936.

Exhibit 484 (page 5957) Japenese~Cerman Pact comprising the pact againsi Communist
International and secret attached pact egainst the Soviet. At the
Investigating Comittee of the Privy Council HIROTA is referred to as
giving his views on the position of the Soviet Union, Nov. 20, 1936.

Exhibit 479 (page 5931) Investigation Report on conclusion of Japan-Cermen Anti-
Comintern Pact, 20 November 1936, states that the government had
planned coordination with Germany since Spring of 1936,

Exhibit 36 (page 5934) The Anti-Comintern Pact was concluded 25 November 1936 when
HIROTA was Prime Minister.
Biogrephy: HIROTA was decorsted for his gervices in Anti-Comintern
Pact, 2 November 1938.

Exhibit 485 (page 5967) Report of Privy Council attended by HIROTA as Prime Minister
on 25 November 1936, discussing relations with USSR in view of Anti-
Comintern Pact and proposed USSR-Jap=nese Fishery Treaty.

Exhibit 480 (page 5936) Secret ennexe to Anti-Comintern Pact 25 Nov. 1936.
1579415796

Exhibit 2208, (pegesl5,790) Three excerpts from "Details Regarding Movements of

By & Gy Rightists Bodies in connection with Change of Government" (relevent

against HIROTA) 20 Jan. 1937.

Exhibit G09A (page 9158A) Privy Council re special appointment of Admin. officials
of the South Seas Govt. 20 Jan. 1937.

NOTE; HIROTA ceased to be Prime Minister Feb. 2, 1937.

D. Evidence relating to events whilst he was Foreign |

Minister, June 1 - May 2 1938. |

Exhibit 672 (page 7336) Telegram fram Chief of steff of Kwantung Army to Viece Var
Minister (Umezu) and Vice-Chief of General Staff, 9 June 1937. "From
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the point of view of military mreparations against Soviet Russia,

we should deliver a blow first of all upon the Nenking Regime to get
rid of the menace at our back. . . . a3 for Japan's policy towards
China as stated in the telegram from Shanghai ang Nanking, we of the
Kvantung Army are entirely of the same opinion.*

Exhibit 58 (page 9230) On June 18, 1937, Ambassador Grew telegraphed to Mr.
HULL regarding an alde-memoire from the Minister of Foreign Affairs.
In this it states that Japan h:s no intention of embarking upon the
building of a naval force itich would menzce other countries so long
as third powers adhere to the principle of maintaining the minimum
force required for strictly defensive needs. Japan would not subscribe
to qualitative limitation in zun caliber for capital ships unless
there was a simultaneous restriction in quality,

Exhibit 946 (page 9422) Excerpt of telegram from Ambassador Grew to the UeSs
cretary of State, 18 June 19537. States that Japarese Covermment |
will not agree to merely qualitative naval armement limitation, but r
insist on guantitative limitation,

Exhibit 841 (page 8261) Outline of the Five Year Plan for the Production of var
Meterials, 23 June 1937.

Witness BALLANTINE (rage 10,733) stated that in July 1937 Japan,

taking advantage of a minar incident in China, invaded that country

on a large scale, Smreading the incident ana taking over large areas.,

3316; 3427 & 3430;)

Exhibit 198, ( pages 2318;/.Tu1y 7oy 1937: The Marco Polo Bridge Incident. .
248,25/

Ching testified (page 2416) that on July 10, 1937, a preliminary

agreement was reached to cease hostilities.

Ching testified (page 2455) that on July 11, 1957, the Konoye Cabinet
passed a resolution to sengd more troops to Marco Polo Bridge area and
push forward, Fighting was thus resumed.

Ching testified (page 2331) that on July 14, 1937, war broke out on an
intensified scale ang the Japanese shelled fan-Ping,

Exhibit 2227 ( page 15,980) Draft by the Arny of a 5> year Plan, sulmitted to
HIROTA on 13 July 1937 (similar tq Exhibit 842), 1937.
lote :Ex.842(page 826/ )Essentials of 5 ¥r.Program of Essential Industries, 29 May/
Ching testifieg (rege 2332) that on July 26, 1937, the Japanese sent
20 ultimatum to the Chinese requesting withdrawal fram Peiping Area

Exhibit 4864 (page 5975) July 28th, 1937: Telegram from German Foreign Ministry

Exhibit 438 (page 5018) angust 3s 1937: Agreement between Japan end Manchukuo for
the creation of the Manchurian Development Company sigred,

Exhibit 950 (page 9435) Memorandum of GREW on Aug, 10, 1937, stating that he hag
offered his help to Minister HIROTA in the present situation, He hag
been authorized to Say this as a definite offer of good off'ices. The
possibilities of arranging a meeting of Japanese and Chinese pleni-
potentiaries to conduet negotiations was put forward,

Liebert testified (page 8513) that on Aug. 10, 1937, the Gold Reserve
Revaluation law was passed, -
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Exhibit 951

Exhibit 58

Exhibits 270,
2235

Exhibit 9E8

Exhibit 58

Exhibit 58

Exhibit 955

Exhibit 265

Exhibit 956

Exhibit 957

Exhibit 958

Exhibit 962

Exhibit 9544

Exhibit 239

Exhibit 9548

ILiebert testified (page 8322) that on August 12,1937, the Iron Manufac-
turing Industry Law wvas passed.

(page 9437) Aug. 13, 1937: Japanese Embassy in Vashington stoted its
agreement with principle contained in Cordell Hull's statement of July
16, and called for full recognition and practical consideration of
circumstances in the Far Ease.

(page 3305) Official U.S. book "Foreign Relations of the U.S,-Japan 1931-
1941" guotes on page 387 First Report adopted by Ieague of Nations
Assembly, Oct. 6th, 1937. Aug. 13, 1937: Attack was opened on Shanghai.

(pages 3610; 16,069,16078 & 16,082) Gist of talk by SATO, Kenryo, giving
details of HIROTA's negotiations in August 1937 - Dec. 1937 for settle-
ment of China Incident, including demands made on Chinese in draft treatly.

(page 9568) american Govt. protest re bombing of non-military objectives
Sept. 1, 1937, .

(page 3303) Official U.S. book "Forelgn Relations of the U.,S. - Japan
1931-1941" quotes on page 387 First Report adopted by League of Nations
Assembly, Oct. 6, 1937, giving details of Foreign Minister HIRCTA's speech 1
to the Diet on 5 Sept. 1937, frying %o justify Japan's attack on Shanghai
on 9 Aug. 1937 and placing bleme on Chinese.

(page 3310) Same book as above gives "Conclusions" on page 393 of book.

(page 9456% Nessege, Grew to HIROTA, 17 Sept. 1937, concerning Japanese
attacks upon American n=tionzls. He quotes in pirticulsr the bambing of
an American Missionery Fospital at Waichow, Kwentung Frovince,

Iiebert testified (puge 8324) thet the Iron Mamufzcturing Industries Law
Enforcement Ordinance of Sept. 20, 1937, provided for special rates of
subgidies for certain iron products.

Srage 3539) Ietter from HIROTA to British Ambassador, Tokyo, 2l .Sevt. 19237,
concerning the wounding of Britioh Ambassador to China.

(page 9458) Messege fram GREW to HIROTA, 22 Sept. 1937, complaining of
request for withdrawal of American Nationals from Nanking. Steles that in
view of repeated Japanese assurances that non-military and non-combe tants
will not be bombed ZAmerica cannot believe that this suggestion arises
from possibility that Nanking area will be bombed.

(page 9460 Sept, 25, 1937: Amsrican objection to the killing of tivo
thousand non-combatants in the recent bombings of Canton.

(page 9461) Resolution adopted by the league of Netions Advisory Commi ttee
on Sept. 27, 1937, condemning the bombing of civilians by the Japanese.

(page S47L4) Frist report adomed by the Ieague of Nations ‘“ssembly on
Oct. 6, 1937, condemning Japan's actions as being in breach of the Nine
Fower Treaty of 1922 and the Pact of Paris of 1926.

(page 94LL) Announcement by the Foreign Ministry, Oct. 20, 1937, stating
that on Oct. 21, 1937, Belgian 2mbassador called on Foreign Minister
HIROTA and handed him a Note Verbale. In accordance with a request from
Great Britaein, approved by U.S., Belgium proposed Signatory states of Nine
Power Treaty convene at Brussels Oct. 30 znd examine means of ending con-
flict.

(page 2960) Cebinet decision outlining the establishment of heavy industry
in Manchukuo (22 Oct. 1937). g

(p2ge 9446) Reply of Jap:nese Govermnment dated October 27, 1937, to

Note Verbale of Bel%cian Ambassador. This set forth the reason why
Japan declined to attend the meeting, stating why in her opinion the

gction in China lay outside the Nine Fower Treaty,




Exhibit 384

Exhibit 492

Exhibit 944

Exhibit 200

Exhibit 263

Exhibit §54-C

Exhibit 483

Exhibit 329
Exhibit 310
Exhibit 311
| 312
313

35

316

317

318

319

320

(page 4488)  ° T e o
(page 4491) ¢ s BN, ’ ’
(page 4495) " R R il A
(pege 4495) ' L s ; :
T N YT e L R S
(page 4499) ; 2 M SR - -
(page 4500) L, 5, 4

(page 4732) Oct. 27, 1937. FReport by U.S. Treasury Attache, Shanghai
re Manchukuo Opium Monopoly Administration.

(page 6033) HIROTA attended Privy Council meeting on conclusion of
Protocol between Japan, Italy and Germany - Protocol was approved by
Privy Council.

(page 9418) Message from GREW to Foreign Minister HIROTA, Dec. 15, 19537
in which he referred to reports that on Nov. 1, 1937, a treaty was signed
by Jepan, ending Japen's extraterritorial rights in Manchuria, and that,
on account of this a manifesto was issued re garding rights of foreigners
other than Japanese in Manchuria. The question of treaties with China
regarding rights of U.S. nationzls in Manchuria was raised.

(pege 3466) official report of Fersonnel Affairs Section on China Affeir,
1 Dec. 1937, published by Foreign Ministry. Document again places
responsibility for outbreak on Chinese and sets out emergency measures
(such as closing of Consulates) to be performed.

wilson testified (page 2533) that on Dec. 12, 1937, all resistance
having ceased, the Japanese attacked Nanking. He =2lso gave evidence
of atrocities there.

(pege 3517) Sinking of American refugee ship "PANAY® on the VYengtze River,
Tec. 12th 1937.

(page 9451) Note delivered by 3ir Robert Craigie to the Foreign Minister
HIROTA on Dec. 16, 1937, in which he addressed the Minister on the
question of attacks m:de by Japanese air and land forces on British
warships and shipping, et Wuhu and near Nanking, Dec., 12th, 1937.
Punishment was the only efficacious me thod to prevent such outrages but
previous assurances stating that these incidents would not recur had not
been put into effect on previocus occasions. Therefore the steps taken by
Japan to prevent repetition huve failed and Eritain asked Japan what
steps whe would take to see that occurrences of this nature would stop.

Liebert testified (page 8472) that on Dec. 20th, 1937, the Manchukuo
Imperial Ordinance NO. 460 wes promulgated. Its purpose was development
and control of heavy industry in Manchuria .,

(page 5956) Statement on the Anti-Comintern Pact. Issued by Bureau of
Information, Dept. of Foreign Affairs, Dec. 1937.

(page 4592) Germen report on Rape of Nanking, Dec. 1937.

(page LL4BL) Statement re Rape of Nanking, Dec. 1937. |

(page 44&5) n n n n " n n

( page 4501) n o n n " " n




Exhibit 321
Exhibit 322
Exhibit 204
205
206

208
323

Exhibit 2228

Exhibit 328
Exhibit 486D

Exhibit 4B6F

Exhibit 486D

Exhibit 486C

Exhibit 486D

Exhibit 2260

Exhibit 268
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(page 4504) Statement re Rape of Nanking, Dec. 1937

(page 4506) " TR " . n

(page 2527) Statement re Rape of Nanking, Dec. 1937 .

(page 2556) : v " n " " n
(page 2599) " JU T : ! .
(page 2608; . » " " " " "
(page 4508 " ey < 38 " " n

Witness BATES (page 2661) when cross-exemined gave evidence of reports
and conversations between Grew and Japanese officials including HIROTA

concerning opium distribution. \

(page 15,982) Instruction by HIROTA as Foreign Minister in 1938 with %
respect to special treatment for Germany in North China. Germeny and ~
Italy are to be given special consideration from the political point of

view end Cermany's interests are to be fully respected and given

preference over a third country.

Admiral RICHARDSON stated (page 11,18L) that after Japan was no longer
bound by the Naval Treaty of 1922, GREVW exchanged notes with HIROTA
proposing a reciprocal exchange of information on Naval construction.
These proposals were re jected by HIROTA. ‘

19308.

(page 4558) Jan. 1938: Telegram to American Embassy shown to
YOSHIZAWL ve Nanking situation who stated matter had been laid before
the Cabinet.

(page 5994) Jan. 5, 1938: Telegram from Ambassador Dirksen to German
Foreign Office showing other militery aggression was threatened by
Japan at this time.

(page 5993) Telegram Dirksen to Berlin Tan. 10, 1938, "Upon the
question whether request for clarification from Chinese Government
would not be sdmissible, HIROTA answvered that the military insists
upon immediate and clear answer,"

(page 5990) Memo by Von Neurath Jan. 10, 1938. Togo stated %o him
that unless the Chinese accept the Japsnese terms, Japan will fight
to the end.

(page 5987) Telegram from Dirksen to Berlin Jan. 14, 199, "Hirota was
very angry at the meaningless Chinese declaration . . . and remarked
that the Chinese had all the necessary bases in order to say yes or no

. . It was China who was beaten . . . I reminded the Foreign Minister
that . « o all further communications fram him to me had been forwarded,
at his wish, to the Chinese Government only in a very indefinite form."

(Page 5989) Telegram from Hankow to Berlin, January 11, 1938, "The
Japanese seem now to be altering for the second time their statements
which were issued through us . . « Transmission of such altered
statements is considered here as a dirty trick which the Japanese

are playing on us and we ere losing face with the Chinese through this."

(pege 16,223) Kido Diary Excerpt, Jan..l4, 1938. Di scussion between
HIROTA and the German Ambassador re decision to have nothing to do with
the Chinese Government.

(page 3563) Statement of government concerning the China Incident, .
16 January 1938.
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Exhibit 486G (page 5999) January 17, 1938. Cable from Dirksen to German Foreign
Ministry criticising Japanese for breaking off negotiations with China
and conversation between him and HIROTA on this subject.

Exhibit 4868 (page 5997) Telegram from Dirksen to German Foreipn Minister stating
thet HIROTA handed him note of termination of Chinese-Japanese
negotiations for transmittal tc HANKOW. This stated that on basis
of China's perfunctory answer Japan assumed that China did not intend
to accept the proposals, HIROTA wished to publish Germany's mediation in
affair, January 16, 1938.

(page 5999) Telegram Dirksen to Reichminister of 17 January 1938,
exmressing regret at Japonese impatience in China,

Exhibit 770 (page 7871) Telegram, dzted Jan. 17, 1938, from Chief of Staff,
Kwantung Army, to Vice-Minister of WTar discloses existence of secret
air route between Japan and Germany.

Exhibit 972G (Page 9521) Address made by Foreign Minister HIROTA to the Diet, 22 Jan.
1938, concerning the China situation, Japan's peaceful intentions and
the lamentable position of the Nation:list Covernment. i

Exhibit 463 (pages 5311-5315) Programme for direction of Centrzl China Administration
was decided on Jan. 27, 1938. l

Exhibit 486-I (page 6016) Report of Jan, 28, 1938, shows Jaran's determination to
conduct a long China war., Remerks by Ambassador Tomo re ce-operation
with Japen by Germany in the new China.

Exhibit 968 (p2ge 9493) Communication from GREW to HIROTA, 31 Jen, 1938, concerning
recent revision of customs rates on certain articles in trade in
N.China by Peiping provisionalsgovernment, U.S. considers the Chinese '
Government as the dnly one entitled to do this and points out the \
illegal assumption of authority of the Peiping Provisional Government.

Since Japzn is responsible for the creation of this regime, U.S.

2ddresses her representations to Japan when the zcts of this regime

affect the interests of foreipn governments,

U.Ss could not accept Japan's implied dizolaimer of responsibility with ,
regard to individual policy in Menchuria. The guestion of creating - ,
monopoly and infringing treaty rights was set forth,

Exhibit 58 (page 9232) On Feb. 5, 1938, Mr. HULL telesraphed to Ambassador Grew
regarding reports that Japen was building or contemplating building
ships exceeding the limits of the Iondon Naval Treaty of 1936. Identical |
notes regarding this metter wers delivered to HIROTA by the U.S., ,
British and French Ambassadors. It was then pointed out thet Japan
had not subscribed to the Treaty. Japan was requested to zive an
assurance that she would not before Jan. 1, 1943, and without informing
the U.S., build or acquire any vessel not conforming to the limits
laid down by treaty. If Jap:n engaged in constructing outside treaty
limits there should be discussion of some future limitation to be |
completed by May 1, 1944, |

Exhibit 969 (page 9496) Message from GREW to HIROTA, 4 Feb. 1938, concerning utter
disregard by Japanese military for U,S. property in China.

Exhibit 58 On Feb. 12, 1938 (page 9236) HIROTA acknowledged to Grew receipt of ‘
his communication of Feb, 5th. In this communication Japan reiterated |
her argument about the impossibility of obtaining equitable dis-
armament by a measure of qualitative limitations without quantitative

. limitation. Japen, therefore felt unable to give information
), | regarding construction of wvessels and felt unable to comply with the ,
request of the U.S. on this matter. ; ;
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~ Exhibit 388

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit

382

971

463

266

2216

997

)
g

973

Exhibit 532

12,

(page 4757) Peiping Government rescinded anti-opium laws and re leased
offenders Feb- 21]-' 19384-

Liebert testified (page 8274) that in March 1938, first step was teken |
to organise power industry on a completely totalitarien basis. I

Liebert testified (page 8380) that the Aircraft Manufacturing Law was
promulgated in March 1938. . |

(page 4861) Irenisn opium purchases agreement and between the Mitsubishi
Trading Company and Mitsui Bussan Kaisha concluded through Foreign |
Ministry March 14, 1936.

(page 9503) Aide Memoire from GREW to Japanese Foreign Minister, 26
March 1938, concerning Japanese occupation of American properties
in Shanghai and the looting and destruction which have taken place,

(page 5296) March 28, 1938: Japunese-sponsored Restoration Government
of the Republic of China formally established.

(page 3543) Propagandist statement sbout the China Affsir entitled
sthe Jepanese Spirit® published by Ministry of Education in Tokyo
Gazette March-April 1928.

Liebert testified (pagze 8436) that in Marxch 1938 the Yen bloc was
enlarged to include 211 Japansse dominated territory.

(page 9501) Aide Memoire from American Minister in Japan to HIROTA,

L, April 1938, stated that although Nenking has been occupied for three
months, U.S. nationals are still prevented from returning to the City
by Japanese military.

(page 15,832) It was stated in ARAKI's interrogation that troops could
not be sent overseas without the consent of, inter alia, the Foreign
Minister. This was confirmed by Minami on page 19,921.

Liebert testified (page 8395) that the National General Mobilisation
Law of May 1938 was the basic legislation for the complete mobilisation
of all facilities for war economy not otherwise provided.

(pages 513,684) National General Mobilisation law of May 1938.

(page 9607) Telegram from GREW to HULL of 18 May 1938 refers to
HIROTA's statement that American apprehensions regardingz Japanese
designs on the Fhilippines und South Seas are regrettable snd the
result of rumors =nd that he would be pleased to dispsl them by
entering into conversations with the U.S.

(page 8789) Excerpt from Jepzn Advertiser of May 19, 1938, explains
thut Jap:n needs nationszl defence policy becouse she is surrcunded by
potential enemies.

NOTE: HIROTA ceased to be Foreign Minister May 29, 193E.

(page 9534) Statement of Ambassador GREW to KONOYE on 3 Oct. 1938 in
which he refers to many conferences he has had with HIROTA concerning
the protection of U.S. interests in China, during which definite
assurances have been givewn but that the violation of U.S. rights and
interests has persisted.

(page 6240) Extract from KIDO Diary, July 5, 1940: HIROTA attended
meeting to choose new Premier and advocated a military man,
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Exhibit 1117

Exhitit 1154

Exhibit 1196

Exhibit 1156-A4

Exhibit 1277

Exhibit 1278

13.

(page 10,166) Extract from KIDO Diary, 17 July 1941, Conference of
elder statesmen to consider successor to gecond Konoye Cabinet "HIROTA
laid stress upon the re-inforcement of GrR and the formmation of a
military Cabinet, but he consented to the opinion of the rest upon

my explanation of the establishment of GHQ in the Palace,”

(page 10,291) In an extract from KIDO's Diary of October 17, 1941,
+ gtates that HIROTA was present at a conference of Senior Statesmen
and when KIDO proposed TOJO as Premier and War Minister on military

service, HIROTA approved.

(ppge 10,452) KIDO's Diary of November 29, 1941, states that a meeting
of Senior Statesmen was held to consult on the present politiczl
situation and HIROTA was mentioned as having been present, HIRITA
advocated a solution by diplomatic negotiations.

(pege 10,513) Interrogation of T0JO, March 11, 1946, citing the
members present at the Conference of Senior Statesmen convensd by the
Emperor on Nov. 30 or December 1, 1941. TOJO explained that war was
inevitable. The Army, Navy and Foreign Ministers, the President of
the Planning Board &nd the Premier met with the Senior Statesmen in
the evening and explained the situation and afterwards TOJO and the
former Premiers including HIROTA met with the Emperor, who heard each

man's opinion.

(page 11,372) KIDO's Diary of 17 July 1944, refers to a Senior States-
man's Council to discuss the re-organization of the present Cabinet.
HIROTA stated he would not join the cabinet if he were asked.

(page 11,377) KIDO's Diary of 18 July 1944 refers to a Senior
Statesmen's meeting to discuss appointment of a new premier and

cabinet. HIROTA attended this meeting.




GENERAL HEADQUARTERS
SUPRENE COMMANDER FOR THE ALLIED POWERS
INTERNATIONAL PROSECUTION SEOTION

8 August 1947
MEMORANDUM 703 Kr. F. 5. Taveaner, Jr.
Actiag Ohief of Oounsel
FRON? David Nolson Sutton
SUBJECT ~ Chronolegical Statements of Prosecution's Evidence

I hand you herewith a copy of the Chronological Statement
of the Frosecution's Nvidence as to each of the seven folleowing
defendantng

DOXEARA, Kenji
EATA, Shanroku
HIRANUNA

HIROTA, Koki
ITAGAXI, Sedshire
MUTQ, Akira

I060, Shigenori

DAVID NELSON SUTTON
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Exhibit 108
Exhibit 102

A

Exhibit 693

Exhibit 1104
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SVENT OF EVIDENCE INTRODUCYD BY PROSECUTION

w f:f lb L‘”r ﬁ’f‘

AL
Al |2

This defendant held the following offices

between the following dates:

Oct. 15th 1930 - Nov., 19th 1932 - Ambassador to U.S.S.R.
Sept, 14th 1933 « April 2nd 1936 - Foreign Minister
Harch 9th 1936 - Feb, 2, 1937 -« Prime Minister

June 4th 1937 - May 29th 1938 - Foreign ¥inister

The evidence against him in chronolopgical

order is as followss
(page 706) Biography of HIROTA
(page 685) List of officeholders in the Imperial

Japanese Government.,

A. Evidence relating to events during the period

——

he waa_gmbnsnador to the U, 8, 8, R, Oct, 15£h
1930 - Nov, 19th 1932
(Fage 7447) Witness Kasahara admitted in erosse

e —

examination that he recorded the words that HIROTA
transmitted to the Chief of the Gencral Staff that it
1s necessary for Japsn to have a strong policy against
Russia being ready for war at eny time., Its prineipal
purbose is not defense against comrunism but the

conquest of eastern Sibera.

(Page 1006) Stimson's Afridavit deals with Japanese
aggression in Manchuria and consequent breach of

numerous treaties and promises,

ON THE DEFENDAN ///////
. it A
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Exhibit 744 (Page 7714) Litvinov's Diary extract., His offer
| of non-aggression pact to Yoshisawa and Hirota
December 1931 o

Exhibit 692 (Page 7447) Conversation between HIROTA and Harada
in 1931 re Armament for possible war with Russia,

1 Exhibit 7%4: (Page 7B82) Readrd of Talk Litvinov and Yoshizawa,
| 31 De¢ 1931 re USSR non-aggression negotiations.
HIROTA attended meeting and expressed surprise at

Russian offer,

Exhibit 225 (Page 2830) Cabinet decision made on 12 Aug 1932
when HYROTA was Foreign Minister concerning aviation
righte in Manchuria, In view of development of

¥anchuris and with future idea of acquiring aviation

e

rights in China proper, the operation of these rights

i is considered essential,

Fxhibit 745 (Page 7719) Jap reply to Russian non-aggression
Q suggestion "untimely", Delivered by Uchida.

”T? B.ﬁLEvidenco relating to events vbilst_he was Foreign
— Minister Sept. 14th 1933, April 2nd 1936,

Exhibit 1105 (Page 10,089) This ds an affidavit of JOSEPH CLARK
GREW Ambassador to Japan from June 1932 until Dec. 7,
1041, HIROTA was Minister of Foreign Affairs from
September 1933 until April 1936 and is mentioned by
name in this affidavit,

Exhibit 1106 (Page 103109) This is testimony of CORDELL HULL

before Joint Congressional Committee on the Investi-

gation of the Pearl Harbor attack, HIROTA was Foreign
Minister from September 1933 until April 1936 and is




St

=

mentioned by name regarding the note to HULL on
ad4frienlties existing between Japan, nited States

and during April 1934 the Foreign -Office gave out
the "hand off China Policy".

Exhibit 746 (Page 7720) Russian reply to Japanese rejection

of suggestion of non-aggression pact January 4, 1933.

Exhibit 747 (Page 7727) Japanese reply to Exhibit 746,

Exhibit 384 (Page 47313) Order of Xanchukuo Government for
esteblishment of laboratories and factories for

narcotics at Herbin, Mukden and Chengteh Oct 25th
1933.

Exhibit 234 (Page 2933) HIROTA was foreign Minister 22

Dec 1933, when Cabinet decision wes made concerning

the preparations for enforeing a monarchy in Manchukuo.

Fxhibit 174 (Page 1802) Note from HIROTA, Foreign Hinister,
21 Feb. 1934 assuring Cordell Hull that Japan's
problems with U.8. could all be solved amicably.

Exhibit 43774 (Page 5015) Excerpt from Manchukuo Government Bulletin
of March lst 1934 gives full information re organic

law of Menchukuo,

Exhibit 236 (Page 2939) HIROTA was Foreign Minister on 20 Marech
1934 when Cabinet decision was made on 'Sumrmary of

Jgp-uanohurian.Eoonomioal Admin, Poliocy.

; Exhibit 703 (Page 7516) March 1934, Plan for strengthening
Army in North Manchuris for operations against USSR

sanctioned by Emperor,
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Exhibit 378

Exhibit

Exhibit 935

=

(Page 4699) April 1, 1934, Heport from U. S.
Tpreasury Attache at Changhal givaes information
on Japanese loans %0 engourage poppy growing in

Jehol,

BALLANTINE, in his affidavit (Page 10721) stated
that HINOTA sent a note to HULL gtating his Beridrs

 BEstino question existed between United States and

Japan fhich ecould not be settled by amicablsc mesns,
Neverthelsssy ou 17 April 1934, the Foreign Office
{ssued the AMAU Statement in which Japen made clear
4tg purpose to compel China to follow Japanisg dictates
and to parmif other countries to hsve relstions with

China, only if Japan sllowed.

(Page 9389) This is an unofficial statement from the
Japanese Foreign Office dated ipril 17. 1934, kmown
as the AMAO Statement at the time when HIROTA was
Forei n Minister. In this statement Japan's reasons
for withdrawing from the League of Nations were given
and Japen's mission and special responsibilities

of preserving peace in Fast Asla were cmphasiaod.
Only China could share this responsibility with Japan
and therefore the unification of China was greatly
desired. In striving for this Japan would oppose any
attempt on the part of China to avail herself of any
other country to resist Japan, Complication arising
from technical or financial assistance to China after
the Menchurian snd Shanghai incidents were set forth

as well as Japan's opposition to these projects.
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Exhibit 936 (Page 9393) This is a telegram from GREW to HULL
regarding the AIAO_Btatcmont and the interview that

Grew had with HIROTA who wished to clarify the state-
ment., HIROTA denied that Japan sought special privilege
in China or wished to create difficulties in trade of

other countries.

Exhibit 937 (Page 9395) This is a memorandum of HULL of Hay 19,
1934 when the Japanese Ambassador called on him and
read a telegram from HIROTA, Foreign Minister. This
was a re-statement of the statement made in London in
April, The importance of solving maetter in a friendly
was was stressed by Mr, Hull,

The formula about Japan's special interest in the Por
Fast were discussed and the Ambassador denied that this
contained an ultimate motive of an Overlordship of the
Orient. On being questioned as to the real reasons why

Japan left the League of Nations, the Ambassador became

evasive,

Exhibit 965 (Page 9481) Memorandum from Grew to HIROTA of 31 Aug
1934 states thst the apparent plan for monopolizing of oil
in Manchuria gives conclusion that Japan is setting up
monopoly of oll there which would be against the ‘open
door' principle., These plans are being formulated under
Japanese guldance, therefore the U. S. is approaching
Japen, bearing in mind Japan-Manchurian relations and

treaties and assurances coneerning 'open door' policy in

Manchuria,

Exhibit 373 (Page 4670) Oct 20, 1934. Asst Sec. to U, 5, ITreasury

Dept., sent letter to the Commissioner of Cust-ms re

its survey of the opium situvation in China,




Exhibit 748

J
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Exhibit 405

Exhibit 939

Exhibit

Exhibit 749

Exhibit 58

=

(Page 7739) Oect, 23rd 1934, O0fficial gtatement
of USSR Consulate General at Harbin to N. Manchurian
special agent of Japanese Foreign Office re rapeated
requests regarding violations in Chinese Eastern
Reilway area resulting in arrest of Soviet nationals.

(Page 4820) Nov. 9, 1934 U, &, Treasury /tlache,
Shanghal reported negotiation of huge transaction

between Japan, Formosan Government and Amoy Combine

for opium,

(Page 9406) This is @ memorandum from the American
rmbaessy in Japen to Foreign HMinister HIROTAy Nov. 30,
1934, regarding the memo of Nov 5th eoncerning control
of the oil industry in Manchuria not being within the

‘knowledge of Japen, The following are additional

references to the Defendant HIROTA.

(Page 10721) Ballantine testified on 20 December 1934
while HIROTA was Foreign Minister, Japesn gave notice
of 1ts withdrawel from the Washington Naval Treaty

of 6 February 1922,

(Paze 7742) On Dec. 15, 1934, Vice~Praegident of
Chinese Eastern Railway wrote to President Li-Shao-Gen
protesting agsinst 1liega1 seigure of rallway quarters

and buildings by Japanese, which hampered normal
functioning of railway.

(Page 9199) With regard to the decision of the Privy
Council in 1934 to abrogate the Washingion Navy Treaty
and draft instructions to SAITO, it appeared that
HIROTA desired to delay the formal notice until after
the adjournment of the present London conversations to
avold the charge that Japan disrupted them, HIROTA was
Foreign Minister at that time,

é

: ,w#—*ma*w*udﬂ—ﬁ#w*-“*‘w%l Al P —— i e A i di e Sl T - .




(Page 5112) official organization of Manchurian
Affairs Board, Imperisl Ordinance Dec. 26, 1934,

Exhibit 451

Exhibit 942 tPage 9416) Dec. 29th 1934, Official Japanese notie

fication of termination of Washin:ton Naval Treaty,

Exhibit 231 (Page 2708) Extrset from summary of Japanese War

Crimes in China 31-37 refers to negotiations Chinese
attempted with HIROTA in 1935'concerning Japanese

violation of TANGU TRUCE by 1llegal flights over China,

Exhibit 4434 (Page 5042) Exerrpt from "Manchukuo Government Bulletin

of January to Mareh 1945" relating to the negotiations

g¢oneluded by HIROTA, then Foredgn Minister in the
Purchase Agreement by Manchukuo from the U'SR of the

Worth Manchurian Aellwey (China Eastern Railwasy from
the Soviet Union).

Exhibit 941 (Page 9413) This shows oral stautement by the ‘merican

Ambassador GRLW to Foreign ¥inister HIROTA on April 16,

1935 regarding the erestion of an 0il menopoly in

VYanchuria end the part pluyed by Japan., This would have
& bad effect on public opinion in the U, 8.

Exhibit 850 (Page 8417) HIROTA attended this Privy Council meeting

of 3 July 1935 held to discuss the conelusion of Joint

Beonomie Agre:ment between Japan and Menchukuo -

Plan wag unanimously .graed upon,

Exhibit 445 (Fuge 5055) July 15y 1935. Japan-Manchukuo Economie

Commission Agreement was signed,

Exhibit (Page 8433) Liebert testified “hat on July 17, 1935

an agreement regarding the

Joint Feonomic Comrittee of
Japan and Manchukuo weas reached,
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Exhibit 134

Exhibit 136

gExhibit 938

Exhibit 197

Exhibit 1307

Fxhibit

(rage 1018) As ¥inister f

(Page 1019) August 13,
for military training

(Pagﬁ 9403) Sipt. 25’ 1935-

attitude thereto.
that on Nove 1sty 193 the
Manchukuo
establish

(Page 2283) 1
general to Japa
winister HIROTA
indapendent state out

and progress of Japa

(Page 11,768) Officia
Foreign Minisiry on 31 O¢

Japanese~=

or Foreign Affairs,
of tha'!outh.sehool

1935 (Page 2705).

1935. Inspection regulations

at youth schools.

gtatement by HULL

tonouv-novomcnt in North China and V. Se R

Liebert testified (Page 8436)
Yen bloc was established.

surrency was cut off 1ts gilver basis end

ed st per with the yen.

ow cebles from WAKASU'GI, Secretary
nese Embassy Peiping to Foreign
regarding rumours of astablishment of

of Province of North China,
nese Foroes Mongoliln.Policy.

1 announcement of the Japanese

tober 1939, stated that the

Netherlands ‘resly of 1933 had been ratified

and a Permanent Coneilistion Jommission composed of
p Article 12 of tne Treaty.

five members was get up unde
bind~

This Commission was to be a permanent organization,

until 12 Angust 1940 and for

{f not denounccd six mon
of tha abrogation of

in a {urther reraining

five yoears
nformed the Hatherlands

ths prior to that date,

Japan 1
Tresty on 12 Jenuary 1940,

of the treoty HIROTA was For

‘£ the time of the

the
eign Minister.

rotification
1,4ebert testified (page 8436) that 1n Karch 1938 the

arged Lo {nelude all Japanese

Yen Bloc wasg enl

dominated territorye.




Exhibit 192

Exhibit 211

Exhibit 211

Exhibit

Exhibit 2226

i)

e —

(Page 2702) "Preparatory Committee for Autonomy in
the War Zone" organized on Nov. 24, 1935. This
followed Japanese attdmpts to change the political

structure of N, China and set up an autonomy,

(Page 2702) Nov. 25thy 1935. Japanese established
Japanese dominated and controlled Eastern Hopeil Anti-
Comintern Autonomous Council in the demilitarized
zone established by the Tangu Truce. The Council

proclaimed independence of the National Government,

(Paze 2704) Deec, 18, 1935, General Sung Cheh Yuan was
appointed Chairman of Hopei-Chahar Political Council
established for administration of North China.

(Page 11,056) Witness BALLANTINE stated that he had
his meeting with HIROTA 1in 1936 4n mind when he made
his affidavit,

(Page 15,977) Statement issued by HIROCTA on the withe

drawal of the Japanese delegates from the London Naval

Exhibit 215

Exhibit 945

4

Conference, 16 January 1936,

(Page 2719) HIROTA as Poréign Minister xent "Gist of
plans for dealing with North Chi=na," 13 Jan 1936 to
Japanese Am assador to China - Plans were drawn up in
Foreign Ninistry which dealt with self-government of
N. China, cooperation with Japan, etec,

(Page 9421) Jan 15, 1936, Japanese give notice of
withdrawal from London Conference on naval armaments

Ce bvidence relating to events whilst he ‘was Prime

S —— - _‘_"‘—h

Minister March 9, 1936 - Feb,., 2, 1937,
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e — e
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Fxhibit 753. Russian report on Japanese Provocative Actions

Exhibit 704

Exhibit 406

Exhibit 2128

Exhibit 391

Exhibit 93

Exhibit

{n the area of Lake Khasan 21 March 1936.

(Page 7523) Decision of the Premier, Foreigngy: War

and Navy Ministers, 7 April 1936 stated there
will be an establishment of two committees for deal=-

ing with matters of border lines and frontiers between
Manchukuo and the Soviet and Nongolia, Ref, HIROTA

was Premier,

(Page 4824) April 20, 1936. U, 5, Treasury Attache,
Bhanghni, {gsued report on cheap sale of Persian
opium in Foochow, Fukien Autonomy Council is about
to materialize, supported by Japanese gonsulates 1in

Amoy and Swatow, This Couneil's financilal resources

will be obtained from smuggling and drug traffiec.

(Page 2705) HIROTA recepient of cable from
Japanese Ambassador to China concerning plan to
found Mongoliasn State 7 May 1936,

(Page 4780) May 9, 1936, U, S5, Treasury Attache at
Shanghai reports that following VYanchurian Inecident
heroin manufacture was taken over by a Japrnese,
Pensants were forced to grow poppies and opium and

heroin production increased three or four times.

(Page 684) Imperial Ordinance No, 63 of May 18, 1936
restored the old rule that War and Navy Ministers
and Vice-Ninisters must be generals and admirals in

active service,

tPage 8358) Liebert testified that on May 29, 1936
the dutomobile Industry Control Law was enacted so
as firmly to establish the industry in order to adjust

R L,

the national defence,
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Exhibit 392 (Page 4784) June 8, 1936, U, 8, Treasury Attache
at Shanghail reported the establishment of the
narcotizntidﬁ poliey of the six Hsiens of North Chahar,
the setting up of distribution points in shops and
stores and the transporting of the drugs from HSrth

Chahar to Kalgran and West Charhar,

Exhibit 237 (Page 2944) June 10, 1936, Treaty between Japan and
Manchukuo giving Japanese in Manchuria equal rights

with Manchurians,

Exhibit 948 (Page 9427) June 12, 1936, Memorandum by Hull
stating U, S. A, had impression Japan was seeking

economic domination, first of East Asia, then of other

places,

Exhibit 977 (Page 9542) Basis of National Policy by War and
| Navy Ministries June 30, 1936 includes "a consistent
| policy of overseas expansion", Considered same day by
conference of Prermier, Army, Navy, Foreign and Finance
Ministers (Exhibit 978). At end Premier said he had

no objection,

Exhibit 978 (Page 9548) Conference of 30 June 1936, attended by
HIROTA entitled "Matters Pertaining to the Outline of

- — —— - i wr— s -

State Policy." Policy consists of a steady footing
| of Japen on . Eastern Continent and development of South

] Seas by diplomatic measures and national defense

s (See Exh. 977).

Exhibit 410 (Page 4830) July 10, 1936, Report by U. £. Ireasury
Attache in Shanghai re illegal activities by Formosans
in Amoy, Formosan Trade Union had been established under
the Japanese Consulate to gsafeguard smugglers and with a

{ business department devoted solely to the buying and

selling of oplum,




Exhibit 979 (Page 9549) Fundamentsl of our national poliey
signed by Prime Minister HIROTA and others, of
11 August 1936, This policy relates to the oradioatian
of USSR memace, preparstions against U, 8, and Creat
Britain, and expansion in South Seas.

Exhibit 217 (Page 2728) Exeerpt from Foreign Ministry file
Important Deecisions re International and National Policies.
The sedond asdministrative policy towards North China -
determined by the Ministries concerned, 11 Aug 1936.

Exhibit 216 (Page 2720) HIROTA as Prime Minister was responsible
for, and made the, decision on 'Basic Prineiple of
National Policy, 7 Aug. 1936' - Prineiples were,
sequrity of Japanese Empire by diplomacy and military
preparations, eradication of Soviet mohaoa and prepara-
tions against Britain snd U, 8,

Exhibit 751 (Page 7750) Excerpt from Russian report on provecative

actions of the Japanese in the Lake Hanka area October
and November 1936,

Exhibit 484 (Page 5957) Jtpnnplo-oermin.Pnot comprising the pact
against Communist International and the Secret Attached
Pact against the Soviet., At the Investigating Committee
of the Privy Council HIROTA referred to as giving his
views on the position of the Soviet Union. Nov. 20, 1936.

Exhibit 479 (Page 5931) Investigation Report on conclusion or1Japih-
German Anti-Comintern Pact, 20 November 1936, states that
the government had planned coordination with Germany
since Spring of 1936--HIROTA was Premier at this time,
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Exhibit 921 (Page 513) The Anti-Comintern Pact was concluded
25 November 1936 when HIROTA was Prime Minister,
Biography: HIROTA was decorated for his services in
Anti-Comintern Pact, 2 November 1938,

Exhibit 485 (Page 5967) Report of Privy Couneil attended by
HIROTA as Prime Minister on 25 November 1936, dis-
cussing relations with USSR in view of Anti-Comintern

Pact and proposed USSR-Japanese Fishery Treaty.

Exhibit 480 (Page 5936) Secret annexe to Anti-Commintern Fact
25 NOV. 1936.

Exhibit 22084, By & C. (Page 15,790) Three excerpts from "Details
Hegarding Movements of Rightists Bodies in connection

with Change of Government" (relevant against HIROTA)
20 Jln'1937¢

Exhibit 909A (Page 9158) Privy Council re special appointment of
Admin, officials of the South Seas Covt 20 Jan. 1937.

HIROTA Prime Minister.,

Exhibit 218 (Pare 3745) The Third Administrative Poliey towards
North China, Feb, 20, 1937. Note: HIROTA ceased to
be Prime Minister Fedb, 2, 1937,

Exhibit 219 (Page 2748) Fxecerpt from Foreign Ministry Flle.
"Important Decisions re International & Netional Policies
Plans for Guiding North China, Decided by the Foreign,
Finance, Wrr & Naval Ministers 16 April 1937,

_ﬂiqintor. June 4, 1937 -‘Iif_29. iéjé:
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flﬂ;:> D, Evidence relating to events whilst he was Fbreigg_
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Exhibit 672 (Page 7336) Telegram from Chief of Staff of Kwantung
Army to Vice War Minister (Umezu) and Vice-Chief of
General Staff 9 June 1937, "From the point of view
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Exhibit 58

Exhibit 946

Exhibit 841

Exhibit

g B

of military preparctions &g
we should deliver a blow fir

Nanking Regime %to get rid of‘tha menace at our
As for Japan's poliey towards China

ainst Soviet Russia,
st of all upon the

DacKe « o o
as stated in the telegram from Shanghal and

Nanking, we of the Kwantung Army are entirely of

the same opinion."

18, 1937, Ambassador Grew tele-

(Page 9231) On June
an aide-memoire from the

graphed to ¥yr. HULL regarding

ntention

hich

HIROTA, In this 1t stotes that Japan has no 1

of embarki

would menace O

ng upon the building of a naval force W
ther countries so 1long &as third powers
ineiple of maintaining the minimum
strictly defensive needs, Japan
gualitative 14mitation in gun

adhere to the pr
force required for
would not subseribe to

caliber for capital ships unless there was & aimul taneous

restriction in nality.

ram {rom Ambassador Grew

18 June 1937. Stetes
gree to merely
but insist on

(Page 9422) Excerpt of teleg
to the U. S, Secretary of State
that Japanese Government will not &

qualitative naval armament 14mitation,
guantitative limitation.

(page 8261) Outline of the Five Year Flan for the

production of War ¥aterials 23 June 1937.

(Page 10,733) Witness BALTLANTINE stated that in

July 1937, while HTROTA was Foreign Minister, Japen
takins advantage of 2 minor inecident in China, invaded
thet country on a large gscale, spreading the incident

and taking over large areas.
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Exhibit 198, 248, 254 (Page 2318) July 7y 1937. The Mareo Polo
Bridge Incident.

Exhibit (Page 2416) Ching testified that on July 10, 1937, 2

preliminary agreement was renched to cease hostilities,

Exhibit (Page 2455) Ching testified that on July 11, 1937
the*Konoyt'Cabinet passed a resolution to send more
troops to Marco Polo Bridge area and push forward.
Pighting was thus resumed,

Exhibit (Page 2331) Ching testified thet on July 14, 1937,

war broke out on an intensified scale and the

Japanese shelled Wan=Ping.

Exhibit 2237 (Page 15,980) Draft by the Army of a 5 year Plan,
submitted to HIROTA on 13 July 1937 (similar to

¥xh., 842).

Exhibit (Fage 2332) Ching testified thet on July 26, 1937, the
Japsnese sent an ultimatum to the Chinese requesting

withdrawal from Peiping Area in 24 hours.

Exhibit 4864 (Page 5975) July 28th, 1937, Telegram from German
Foreign ¥inistry to German Fmbassy in Tokyo complained
that Japan's aggression in China is contrary to Anti-
Comintern Pact and 1is foreing China into the arms of

Russia.

Exhibit 438 (Page 5018) August 3, 1937. Agreement of ereation of
Manchurian Development Company signed.

Exhibit (Page 3303) Extract from Lytton Report giving details
of Foreign ¥inister HIROTA speech to the Diet on
9 Aug 1937 trying to justify Japan's attack on Shanghal
and placing blame on Chinese,
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Exhibit 950

Exhibit

Exhibit

Exhibit 951

Fxhibit 57

Exhibit 270

Exhibit 988

1307A

9094
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(Page 9435) Nemorandum of GREW on Aug 10, 1937,

gtnting that he had offered his help to the

Minister HIROTA in the present situation., He had

been authorized to say this as a definite offer of

The possibilities of arranging a

good offices.
lenipotentiaries

meeting of Japanese and Chinese D

to conduct negotiations wWas put forward,

(Page 8513) Liebert testified that on ’ug. 10

1937, the Gold Heserve Revaluation Law was passed.

(Page 8322) Liebert testified that on August 12,

1937, the Iron vanufacturing Industry Law was

passed.

(Page 9437) Aug. 13, 1937. Japenese Embassy in

washington stated 1ts agreement with principle

and ealled for full recognition and practical con-

gsideration of eircumstances in the Far East.

(Page 3305) Aug. 13, 1937. Attack was opened on

Shlﬂ‘tni <

3605) Gist of talk by SATO, Kenryo giving

(Page
Ats negotiations in August 1937 -

details of HIROT

Dec 37 for settlement of China Inc, Demands made on

Chinese in draft treaty.

(Page 9568) Americean sovt. protest re bombins of

non-military objectives Sept. 1y 1937,

768) Foreign Ministry announcemsnt of

(Page 11
{rtion commission

establishment of permanent concil
petween Japan snd the Netherlands 31 Oct. 1935.

(Page 94158) Notes of privy Council regarding
administrative officials of South

'
\

spegial

appointment of
geas Govt 20 Jan. 1937.
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| Exhibit 954A (Page 9444) Announcement by the Foreign Ministry,

Oat 204 1937. stating that on Det 21, Belgain Ambassador

ealled on Foreign Minister HIROTA and‘hnndod him a Note
Verbale, In accordance with request of Creat Britain
and approved by U, S., Belgium proposed Signatory
states of Jine Power Treaty convene at Brussels Oet 30

and examine means of ending confliet,

Exhibit 239 (Page 2960) HIROTA was Foreign Minister and President
of Planning Board 2t time of Csbinet decision outlining
the establishment of heavy industry in Manchukuo
(22 Oct 1937).

Exhibit 9548 (Page 9446) Reply of Japanese Yovernment date
October 27, 1937 tc No‘e Verbale of Belgian Ambassador;
This set forth the reason why Jspsn declined to attend
the meeting steting why in her opinion the 2ction in
China lay outside the Nine Power Treaty. HIROUTA was
Foreign Minister at that time,

Exhibit 384 (Page 4732) Oct 27, 1937. FReport by Uj 8. Treasury
Attache, Shanghai re Manchukuo Opium Monopoly Adminise-

tration,

Exhibit 492 (Page 7981) HIROTA attended Privy Counecil meeting on
econ+lusion of Protocol between Japan, Italy and Germany -

Protocol was approved by “rivy Council,

Exhibit 944 (Fage 9418) XNessage from CREW to Foreign Minister
HI®0TA, Dec. 1, 1937, in which he referred to reports
that on Nov 1, atraity'vla signed by Japen ending Japan's
extraterritorisl richts in Manchuria and that on account
of thi;’maniresto*was i{ssued regarding rights of foreign-
ers other than Japrnese in Manchuria., The question of
treaties with China regarding rights of U, &, nationals in

Manchuria was raised,
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Exhibit 55

Exhibit

Exhibit 852

Exhibit 956

Exhibit 957

Exhibit 958

Exhibit 962

e

(Page 9456) Message, Orew %o HIROTA, 17 Sep 1937,
coneerning Japanese attacks upon American nationals,
quotes in partiecular the bombing of an American
Missionary Hospital at walehow, Kwantung Province,

(Page 8324) Liebert testified that the Tron ¥anu-
facturing Industries Law Enforcement Ordinance of
Sept 20, 1937, provided for gpecial rates of sub-

sidies for certain iron products,

(Page 3538) Letter from HIROTA, Foreign Minister to
British Ambassador Tokyo, 21 Sep. 1937, concerning the
wound ing of Rritish Arbassador to China,

(Page 9458) Message from GREW to'HIFOTA 22 Sep. 1937,
eomplaining of request for withdrawal of American
Nationals from Nanking and that in view of repeated
Japanese assurances that non-military and non-combatants
will not be bombed American cannot believe that this
suggestion arises from possibility that Nanking area will
pe bombed.

(Page 9460) GSept, 25, 1937, Americen objection to the
ki11ing of two thousand non-combatants in the recent

borbings of Canton,

(Page 9461) Resolution adopted by the League of Rations
Advisory Committee on Sept. 274 1937 condemning the
bombing of civilisns by the Japanese,

(Page 9474) First report adopted by the 'eague of Nations
Assembly on Oct. 6, 1937, condemning Japan's actions as
being in breach of the Nine Power Treaty of 1922 and
the Fact of Paris of 1928,
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Fxhibit 260

Fxhibit

Exhibit 263

Exhibit 954-C

Exhibit

Exhibit 483

1>

—

(Page 3486) official report of Personnel Affairs

section on China Affair, 1 Dee 1937, published by
Foreign Ministry, At this time HIROTA was Forelgn
Minister -»ﬁooument again places responsibility for
outbresk on Chinese and sets out emergency measures, such

as closing of Consulates, %0 De performed.

(Page 2533) Wilson testified thet on Deec 12, 1937
all resistance having ceased, the Japanese »ttacked

Nanking.

(Page 3517) HIROTA was Foreign Yinister a2t time of
sinking of American refugee ship "PANAY" on the

Yangtze River,

(Page 9451) Note delivered by Sir Robert Craigle to
the Foreign ¥inister HIROTA on Tec 16, 1937, in whiech
he addressed the ¥inister on the question of attacks
made on Jap:nese &ir - land force on British warships
and shipping, at Wuhu and neasr Nanking, Dec. 12th,
Outrage punishment was the only efficacious method to
prevent such outrages but previous assurances stating
that these iﬁcidents'would not recur had not been
nut into effect on previous occasions, Therefore the
steps taken by Japan to prevent repetition have failed
and Britain asked Jspan what steps she would take to

sea that occurrences of this ne ture would stope.

(Page 8472) Liebert testifiec that on Dec., 20th,
1937, the ¥enchukuo Imperial Ordinance No, 460 was
promulgated, Its purpose Was development and control

of heavy industry in Manchuria.

(Page 5956) B8tatement on the inti-Comintern Pact,
Tssued by Bureau of Informatlon, Dept. of Foreign

Affairs, Dee. 1937.




Exhibit 329 (Pnge 4592) GOerman report on Repe of Nanking,
Dee, 1§37.

Exhibit 310 (Page 4483) BStatement re Rape of Nanking, Deec. 1937
311 (Page 4485%) " " " n "
312 (Page 4488)  ® ‘ . S A
313 (Page 4491) " " " Y "
315 (Page 4495) " " " " "
316 (Page 449%) " " " " "
317 (Page 4498) " " n " "
318 (Page 44%9) " y n " "
319 (Page 4500) " " " "
320 (Page 4501) " " " " n
321 (Page 4504) " " " " "
322 (Page 4506) " " Y " r

Exhibit 204 (Page 2527) Statﬁgr Rape of Nanking, Dec. 1937
205 (Page 25%6) " " " " "
206 (Page 2599) " " " " "
208 (Page 2608) " Rt " " "
977 (Page 9542) " " " " "

Exhibit ( (Page 2661) Witness BATES when cross-examined gave

evidence of reports and conversations with HIROTA and

others eoncerning opium distribution.

Exhibit 2228 (Page 15,982) Instruction by HIROTA as Foreign Kinister
in 1938 with respect to treatment of Germany in North
China, Uermany and Italy are to be given special con-

sideration from the political point of view and Germany's

interests are to be fully respected snd given preference over

a third councry.
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